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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Managers' report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Managers' Report

The hoard of managers (the "Board") present their report and the audited consaolldated financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2015 ("2015")

Development of the business

Misys Newco 2 S arl {the “Company”}1s a imited labiity company domiciled in Luxembourg The address of
its registered office 13 19, Rue de Bithourg, 1-1273, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

The Company, together with its subsidianes {"Misys" or “the Group®) was formed by the combination of two
separate acqusitions by Vista Equity Partners in 2012

The Group’s principal activites are the development, management and licensing of a variety of software
products and sciutions to customers in the financial services industry  The Group operates globally, including
partnering with other companies to sell and distnbute Misys products and solutions.

The business continued its oparations as a provider of mission cniical software whose products are deeply
embeddad i customers’ cperatons. The financial services market continues to evolve with ongoing pressure
on banks to betier manage enterprise wide nsk, to mroduce new growth areas and to comply with regulatory
requirements

2015 was a transitional year for the Group, reflected in the deciine i performance compared with the strong
results of the previous two financial years 2015 performance was impacted by extended deal cycles in closing
lcence deals as well as some weaknesses in sales exscution, product delays and investments mads In prior
years to improve our sales enablement not delivering as expected

In the financial year ended 31 May 2015, the Group confinued to focus on delivering growth and improving
operating margins through investing in product development, sales and marketing, and talent The Group
continues to make crganisational changes to improve sales execution and further advance its ‘go-to-market’
propositions Further ergamsational changes were planned and are to be executed during the 2016 financial
year The Board continues to befieve that the Group will remain competitive within the markets it operatas 1,
due to the quality, breadth and depth of its producis as well as its competitive positioning

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Cusiom
Credit Systems, LP (“CCS") for a total consideration of $26 6m ($24 Bm net of cash acquired) CCS is a
leading provider of loan ongnation and credit workflow software CCS has expertise and strong reputatron m
commercial lending, making their knowledge and products a complement to the Groups FusionBanking
portfollo The Group have integrated CCS's offering mto FusionBanking Loan 1Q ta create a fully integrated,
front-to-back office commercial lending solubon across all asset classes More detalls about this acquisilion
can be found in note 5 to the consolidated financral statements

Research and Development Activity

Dunng the year, research and deveiopment gross expenditure before capitalisation increased to $122 2m
compared to $121 8m in the prior year largely due to the full year impact of the acquisition of IND Group
Hoiding Limited (“IND") and the partial year impact of the acquisiton of CCS cffset by foreign exchange
movements The Group continued to benefit from the consolidation of research and development locations,
along with benefithing from lower associated costs relative to the US dollar

A successful research and davelopment agenda Is a strateglc prionty of the Group The markets n which the
Group operates are complex, requinng an effective research and development sirategy to support and
maintamn the compettive advantage the Group enjoys The Group remains commitied to the conbinuous
development of a porifolio of market ralevant products This agenda will continue into the next financial year
Ongoing investmant in new technology and functionality has, and wil contnue to, enable the Group to
maintam and strengthen its market leading position
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During the year, the Group has invested in a Group-wide Product Strategy function, which 1s tasked with the
coordination of long term product strategy for all the markets i wiuch it operates, m order to wentfy, and
accelerate the development of, integration opportunities between products for the benefit of its customers
Integraton and componentisation of the Group’s solutions, backed up by a leading FusionFabric technology
platform, beneflts customers of multiple of the Group’s producls through increased transparency, reduced
implementation costs, more effective decision-making end more efficient operations

The Group has also enhanced the value proposition of s Corporate Lending solution by integrating credit
orlgination and management capabiiities with its back-office and servicing capabilities, as well as integrating its
FusionBanking Essence, Equation, and Midas core banking solutions with the new Digital Channels mobile
and online banking capabilities Most recantly, the Group has released the FusionBanking Fees & Billing
modute, allowing customers to build, test, and roll out sophisticaled, cross product and business pncing
strategies, including bundling, discounting, and other actvity or volume based pricing strategies in both
corporate and retel banking settings Investments in research and development have been complimented by
investments 1in markeling, in particular with a group-wide rebranding of product lines to create an improved
offering to market

Key Performance Indicators ("KPis")

The Group’s KPI results for the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 May 3t May % Increase/
2015 2014 (decrease)

Revenue ($m) 880 5 945 8 (7%)
trubal Licence Fees ($m) 205 4 2607 (21%)
Adjusted EBITDAC" ($m) 296 7 3237 (8%)
Research and development expenditure’ ($m) 1222 1218 0%
Net cash flow generated from operations ($m) anz 31090 (6%)
Net debt® ($rn) 1,757 2 1,791 5 (2%)
Headcount - year end 4,619 4,660 (1%)

'Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciaton and Amortisallon less the amounts capitaised 1n raspact of Intemnally
developed software and ather adjustments See page 5 for a reconcibalion of operating profit to this adjusied measure
? Excluding discretionary employee related costs

* Borrowings, excluding Praferred Equity Certificales, less cash and cash equivalants and restricted cash
Commentary cn the Group's KPIs 15 provided as part of the financial review below
Financial Review

Resuits

Revenue decreased by 7% from $945 8m in 2014 to $880 5m in 2015 Revenue dechne was largely due 10 the
impact of foreign exchange rates on reported revenues, in particular the strengthening of the US Dollar aganst
the Eurc and Pound Sterhing duning the year On a constant currency basis, revenue declined by
approximately 2% largely due to mora prolonged deal cycles as a result of extended customers' internal
diligence processes, some weakness in sales execution and product delays.

A 21% decline in lmitial Licence Fees {"ILF") to $205.4m compared with $260 7m in 2014 was largely due to
exacution 1ssues, lengthening of deal cycles and the impact of foreign exchange rates The Board considers
ILF to be a KPl because It 1s a measure of new busness and drves future Mawntenance {ees and, w1 many
casas, new Professional Servicas ("PS") revenue On a constant currency basis ILF reduced by $39 7m or
16%
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Maintenance fees decreased margmally from $478 2m to $474 5m in 2015 due to the impact of foreign
exchange rates On a constant currency basis maintenance fees Increased by 5% benefliting from strong ILF
in 2014 and annual price increases in 2015

Adjusted EBITDAC of $286 7m, a decline of 8% from $323 7m n 2014, reflecis lower ILF, partly offset by
lower vanable employee costs Adjusted EBITDAC 18 the key measure of performance used by management,
and also forms part of the financial covenant under the Group’s loan faciities A reconciliation between
Adjusted EBITDAC and operating profit as per the consolidated financial statements 1s shown in the next
saction of this report

Research and development ("R&D"} expenditure increased to $122 2m from $121 8m in 2014, largely due to
the acquigition of IND and CCS offset by the impact of foreign exchange rate movements in the year

The Group has conducted annual imparrment reviews on the camying value of goodwill, based on the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU"} to which goodwill has bean allocated The results of
these reviews are disclosed in note & to these financial statemants On an aggregated basis, the Group has a
sigmificant surpius on the carrying values of its CGUs However, on an individual basls an impairment charge
of $60 Om (2014 $nl) has been recorded in 2015 against the carryng value of goodwili allocaled to the
FusionRisk CGU and 1s Included In operating expenses in the consolidated income statement Performance of
this CGU durng the year did not mest the expeciations of management, and together with lower than
anticipated forscast revenues and having considered reasonable sensitvitles, the Managers have desmed it
appropriate to record this impairment charge in the consolidated Income statement.

The Group reporied operating profit of $56 3m compared with $125 2m in 2014 Operating profit mcludes non-
recurning charges of $23 5m (2014 $10 5m) consisting of costs of $1 1m refated to the acquisition and
integration of GCS and IND and restructuring charges of $22 4m The Group announced the restructuring of its
Eurcpean sales orgamisation in November 2014 and this programme was completed by tha end of the financial
yaar at a total cost of $56 3m In May 2015 the Group commenced new cost reduction programmes impacting
its PS, Customer Support and Sales and Marketing funcbons and recorded a restructuning charge of $11 Om
mainly related to severance costs In addition operating profit Includes net other foreign exchange gains of
$25 7m (2014 loss of $3 6m) which largely consists of reaised and unrealised foreign exchangs gains on
forward currency contracts used to hedge the Group's forecast cash flow.

The Group incurred net finance costs of $337 3m, an increase of 2% from $331 2m in the prior year This
increase was a result of higher interest on Preferred Equity Certificates ("PECs") as a result of compounding
Interast, Finance cosis primanly comprise $144 5m (2014 $144 4m) on bank loans and faciites and non-
cash $174 4m (2014 $167 6m) on PECs

The Group incurred tax charges of $30 2m {2014 $28 7m) largely due to current taxabon charges of $67 8m
(2014 $68 7m) partially offset by deferrad tax credits of $37 6m (2014. $40 Om)

Fmancial position

Non-current assets of $2,613 5m (2014 $2,854 3m) pnmarly comprise goodwill of $1,614 1m (2014
$1,686 3m) and other intangible assets of $918 8m (2014 $1,0934m) Goodwill of $17 3m and other
intangible assets of $9 8m wera recognised during 2015 on the acquisition of CCS A further $28 7m (2014
$34 8m} comprises tangible fixed assets, predommantly office furnishings and formation technology
equipment

Non-current trade and other raceivables of $31 6m (2014 $23 3m) comprises lax crediis on qualfied research
and development expenditure, and revenue from customers which contractusily cannot be billed within twelve
months of the reporling date

Current assets of $398.6m (2014 $433 9m) largely comprise billed and unbilled recelvables of $294 Om {2014
$324 Om) and cash balances of $40 3m (2014 $50 8m)




Misys Newco 2 S.AT.l.
Managers’ report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Net deferred tax habdities of $138 8m at 31 May 2015 (2014 $170 Om) prmarnly relate to the timing
differences on other intangible assets acquired by way of business combinations

Other Wabdites compnse trade and oiher payables of $191 4m (2014 $225 8m) and deterred income of
$253 7m (2014 281 m)

Net debt

Net debt 1s defined as borrowings excluding PECs, lass cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash The
Group excludes PECs from net dabt for consistency with the financlal covenants under #s banking facilibies
Net debt decreased by 334 3m In the year to $1,757 2m compared to $1,791 5m in 2014, primanly as a rasult
of a $49 Om decrease i the US Dollar value of the €186 3m term loan under the First Lien credit facility due to
the depreciation of the Euro against the US Dollar This decrease was partially offset by net cash oculflows of
$24 9m on acquisiion of CCS Note 22 of the consclidated financlal statements provides a reconciliation of the
movement in net debt

Cash fiow

Net cash flow generated from operations i the year was $291 7m compared with $310 0m in 2014 The
decrease I1s largely due to the lower operating profit generated n 2015, offset by larger non-cash foreign
exchange gains and a smaller decrease in accounts recevable and accrued income

The Group pald $72 5m (2014 $53 1m} of corporation tax duning the year of which $11,9m (2014 $10 7m)
related to withholding tax levied on payments made to Misys enbties where the tax could not be recovered
through the local corporale tax regime due esther lo underlying tax losses or other restrictions under local tax
law The Group s withun the scope of corporation tax in the jurisdictions it 1s based in and settles taxes in
those locations fo the exient that there are taxable profits in the country which are not offset by existing tax
losses The main corporale lax paid was $28 5m (2014 $22 4m) in the US where remaining tax losses wers
utlised in the year to 31 May 2015

Tha Group used $69 5m of cash for investing actvities (2014 $93 2m) largely comprising $34 2m (2014
$31 9m) expenditure incurred on intemnally developed software and the net cash outflow of $24 Sm in the
acquisition of CCS .
Net cash of $13 1m was used in financing actviies, being the mandatory repayment of the first llen cradit
facility referred to 1in Note 16
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Reconciliation between operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Below is a reconclliation between operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figutes I S millons - 2015 2014
Operating profit 563 1252
Add back
Non-recurring charges 235 10656
Goodwill impairment i 60.0 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 98 a0
Met other foreign exchange (gain) / loss {25.7) 36
Investor's management fees 1.4 24
{Gan) / loss on embedded denvatives {1.9) 40
Adjusted EBITDA 3278 3556
Less-
Capitalised software development costs 309 319
Adjusted EBITDAC 296.7 3237

Principal risks and uncertainties

Tna Group's wsion of becaming the number one provider of software n the financial services market 1s built on
ensuring customer success, providing outstanding support and services, tvesung in research and
devetopment, building a high performance cullure and delivering sustainable financial performanca Execulive
management actively manages nsks that impact these strategic imperatives The key nsks and assocated
mitigation activities below do not comprise all the risks associated with the Group and they are not set out in
any order of priority Additional risks not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less
matenal, may also have an adverse effect on the business

Changing macro-economic conditions and risks related to accurate sales forecasts

The global financial services soflware industry is highly competitive and can be adversely impacted by
changing macro-ecanomic factors [lke sovereign indebtedness, economic slowdowns, governmental budgetary
constraints and polltical instability resulting In change in demand of certain products, inability to service cerlain
markets and an increase in deal cycles While the impact of these factors on the Group 1s limited due to a high
recurnng revenue base {over 50% of the Group's revenue I1s recumng in nature} from a geographically
diversified customer base {over 2,000 customers n 130 countnes) with no single customer contnbuting more
than 2% of Group revenues, macro-economic and poltical changes could adversely impact the Group's
results.

Technology investments in financial services software are usually significant in vatueg and the Group has to
compete with vanous global, regional and local softwara gervice providers to win business [n addition, deal
cycles are usually lengthy due to formahsed vendor diligence and procurement processes in the financial
services industry This combined with changing customer requirements end inconsistent sales exsacution can
create difficultes in forecasting revenues, particularly the quantum and timing of new license sales
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The Group manages these nisks by employing sales teams and sales partners that are compensated based on
performance, geographtcally based in key markets supported by product specialists whare needed Tha sales
teams are required to develop and maintain heatthy sales pipetines lo allow for histoncal deal win rates and
unpredictabibity in the timing of closing deals While sales pipeline forecasts are subject to regular busingss
reviews and adsted for changes in sales dynamics, forecast assumptions of pipeime ‘conversion rates' and
‘win rates’ can ba impacted by factors ke dea) sizes, market conditions, change in customer behaviour,
product maturdy and sales performance resultng in increased unpredictabiity of new license sales
performance

In addition, a substantial porbion of the Group's sales activity has historically been completed In the latter parl
of the finanoal year and a shortfall in revenus can have a significant iImpact on profitability due to the relatively
fixed nature of the Group’s cost base In the short to medium term

Market predictions and risks related to product delivery

In a global and rapidly changing market, the Group needs to respond to the changing needs of customers and
requlators by investing in high quality products and solutions that mest their requiremants and are deliverad on
tme Over time the Group has bult a software portfclie that has grown to become the broadest range of
solutions focused on the financial services industry

The increased demand for Digital Channels solutions, data analytics, SaaS ("Software as a Service"), rnisk
management and reporting tools and the introduction of regulations such as Dodd-Frapk and EMIR provides
the Group opportunities to sell new solutions to existing and new customers This requires the Group to track
and predict global and regional market requirements, trends and changes in regulations and direct the R&D
investment in the nght solutions ta ensure maximum return on investment

While the Group continues to make significant investment in its products, with approximately 16% (2014 15%)
of operational cosls in the current year invested 1n R&D, it 13 possible that some investments might not deliver
anticipatad retums due to changes in marke! conditions, inherent uncertainties 10 accurately predicling
requirements for a global market or the falure to deliver quaity products on time

The Group manages the nsks retated to ongoing product investments and product development through
various means including the use of agile product development methodologies, product investment reviews,
hinng experienced product managers and business analysts who understand various market requrements and
the use of customer adwisory boards which bring together key client stakeholders to discuss and valdate the
top prionties for Misys product roadmaps Over 45% of the Group’s staff are dedicated to R&D and the Group
maintains a strong focus on engineering excellence, \mptementing best practice product development
methodologies, tools and processes and independent product testing and qualty assurance processes
Howaever, the Group could be adversely impacted by unforeseen delays in product development due to
changing requirements, increased complexity and coding or manufacturing errors despite testing prior to
release

The Group also invests in acquinng complementary lechnology as evidenced by the acquisition of IND and
CCS Acquisitions are inherently risky requinng strong due diligence, analysis and integration processes to
ensure projected benefits and synergies are realised The Group uses dedicated and experienced leadsrship
teams with significant experience in corporate development and employs appropriate due dihgenca processes
when Identifying acquisition targets While the Group has a track record and significant expenence of
integrating acquired businesses, it may fai to wdentify all shortcomings or llabilities related to acquisitions or fail
to realise all anticipated benefits and synergles

Risks related to project implementations and customer support

To ensure that customers maximise their return on investment, the Group's products usually need fo be
supported by timely implementations, integration with existng customer systems and afler sales support
sarvices In general, system implementations, mugrations and integrations can be impacted by unforeseen
challenges in deliverng solutions on time and to budget. These risks ¢an also have an adverse effect on the
trming of ravenue recogrition

[+
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The Group manages these nsks by the use of services siaff and managers with deep domain expertise,
modular, repeatable and pradictable project delivery modeis and project reporting/forecasting processes The
Group uses service delivery centres that are co-localed with development teams to continucusly refine and
improve implementations However, due to the length and complexity of some implementations and the
ongoling modfications to product code, the Group may face unforeseen issues with services delveries that can
have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction and profitability, The Group usually Invest in services
capabiities in advance of projected new licensa sales and an unforeseen decline in sales performance can
hava an adverse impact on services profitabiity

Customars can choose from standard support or specialised premium support packages based on thefr
requirements Many support agreements include servica [svel agreements that the Group needs to comply
with The Group uses trained customer support staff that has deep domain expertise deployed in multiple
locabons globally to ensure continucus availabilty of appropnate support levels The Group also uses &
dedicated customer support portal to monitor support queries However, 1t is possible that the Group may not
comply with support service leve! agreements which could have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction,
profitabitity and customer retention

Talent management, performance management and employee retention risks

The Group considers iis peopls to be its most important asset and relies on the continued service of key staff
at vanous levels within the organisation to succeed The Group's talent management systems are used {o
support ongoing dentification, development, training and retenton of talent and implementation of training
programs to ensure staff skills remain relevant and current Regular benchmarking of compensation and
benefits across key markets 1s conducted to ensure salaries remain compehtive

In addition a strong recruitment and talent acquisition process is In place to ensure high potentizl talent is
introduced o the Group whare needed However, the Group could be adverssely impacted by the loss of key
talent and it 1s possible that such losses, If not managed, can be disruptive to the business

The Group uses parformance managemant systems to ensure indwidual and team goals are algned to
corparale objectives Parformance management actions may require workforce restructuning that could be
potentially disruptive to the business and could be accompanied by increased resiructuring costs and
temporary reduction in productivity

Liguidity, debt, financial control and forelgn exchange risks

The Group alms to achleve outstanding financial performance to ensure sustainable availability of capital and
lquidity to allow further Investments in pecple, products and services and appropriate management of the
Group's debt and hquidity posiion In addition, the Group carmes a significant amount of debt with associated
interest, repayment and covenant comphance obligations This means the Group needs ‘o focus on strong
financial and cash control, budgeting and rehability of financial forecasts The Group has a dedicated finance
and treasury team that assists management In operating key financial controls over budgets, forecasts and
cash flow optirusaton. Any unforeseen reduchions in revenue or increase In costs or habilihes, especially
around seasonal periods of reduced hquidity may have an adverse impact on the Group's financial
performance and working capital position

The Group has operations in around 50 countnes and its customers operate in over 130 countries around tha
world While the Group's financial performance is measured in US Dollar, a significant amount of the Group's
cash flows are denominated in other currencies particularly Euro, Pound Sterling, Incdhian Rupes, Philippine
Pesq, and Austrahan Dollar based on where significant business i1s conducted around the worid Any
significant variations in foreigh exchange rates against the US Dollar can have an impact on key financial
performance indicators mncluding revenue The Group operates a hedging sirategy to protect a significant
portion of anticipated net cash flows in key foreign cumencies using forward currency contracts However, long
term vanations in foreign exchange rates of key currencies could adversely Impact the Group's profitabiity




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.L
Managers’ report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Security and inteltectual property risks

The Group is a provider of financral services software and has to ensure appropnate secunty of sts Information
Technology {(“IT*) infrastructure, products and intellectual property The Group invests a great deal of time and
effort in protecting s IT infrastructure and data including any sensibve data held The Group's hosting and
Saa$5 offenngs go through external secunty reviews and product security and vuinerability testing ts a part of
the software development lifacycle The Group's customers are also increasingly demanding that products
contain appropnate secunty measures, even If they are not hosted on the Group’s IT Infrastructure High
profile secunly breaches at other companies have mcreased over ime due to increasingly sophisticated cyber
atlacks A highly sophisticated attack on the Group's infrastructure or products insfalled m a cusiomer's
environment could result In the loss of sensitive information ar intellectual property or damage o customers’
business or regulatory obligations and this could have an adverse impact on the Group's compettiveness and
profitabilily

In addition, the Group's ongoing development efforis result in the creation of intellectual property (“IP") such as
copyrights, trademarks and patents, The Group also embeds third party software within its preduct solutions
o customers While patenting and other forms of IP protection are ulihsed to protect the Group's IP it is
possible that these processes may not be sufficient to prevent IP theft and could result in loss of competitive
advantage [n addiion, the Group may face claims by other companies, including patent trolls, claiming
infreimgement or other misuse of [P rights Respending to such claims, regardless of valdity, can be time
consuming and expensive and could require the Group to cease selling or releasing certain products

Business continuity and disaster recovery risks

Tha Group has over 4,500 employees in around 50 1gcations, including a significant presence in Asia, Europa
and the Amercas Due ta the global nature of the Group's husiness a signtficant natural or man-made disaster,
pohtical changes, acts of terrorism, restrictions in travel or the movement of people or capital could have an
impact on the Group's ability to continue lo provide sufficiant services to customers or release products on
tme Whie the Group has resilience buill into ds operations with data backups processes, cloud-based
systems and remote worlung and has successful track record of managing business continuity incidents
across mulliple lacations, the Group's coperations could be Impacted by major disasters in key sites or
countries

Legal, regulatory and litigation risks

The Group operates in around 50 tocations around the world and 15 subject to various regulations and laws in
each country including health and safety rules, data protection regulations, employment laws, tax regulations
and tha UK Bribery Act The Group employs dedicated internal regional tegal teams supporled by legal
advisors and expenenced business staff

The Group's global operations, partcutarly in emerging economues, increases the nsk of inappropnate
business conduct The Group manages this risk through a prascribed cede of conduct, anonymous whistle-
blower sites, anti-bnbery training to relevant staff and regutar monitonng of customer facing staff and pariners
While comphance with all significant laws and regulations i1s monifored by the regional legal teams there
remalns a risk that the Group may not be comphant with all applicable laws and regulatons wn avery
junsdiction

In additon, from time to time the Group has been subject to htigation claims from former amployees,
customers and business paringrs Whie the Group has appropnate process to manage and account for krnown
Itigation (none of which 1s currently considerad to bo matenal to the Group's results and financial posibion), any
new and significant itigation n the future could have an adverse impact on financial performance
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Managers

The Managers of the Company who were In office during the yaar and up 1o the date of signing the
consolidated financial statements are

Donald Park (Appaointed 19/03/2015)

QOliver Hamou (Appointed 19/03/2015)

Elvin Monles {Appointad 30/04/2015)

Maneet Singh Saroya (Resigned 18/03/2015})

Anne Catherine Grave (Resigned 19/03/2015)

Catherine Koch (Resigned 30/04/2015)

Events after the reporting date

Apart from es disclosed in nole 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no significant events have
occurred since the reporting date

Going concern

The Managers have reviewed the Group's forecasts and assumphons relevant in determining the
appropriateness of the going concarn basis and, at the tme of approving these consolidaled financial
statements, have a reasonable expectabion that the Company and the Group have accoss to adequata
financlal resources to conhnue in operational existence for the foreseeabie fulure While assessing going
cancern assurmnption the Managers noted fhat the Group has complled with covenant terms since thelr
mception n May 2012 and behave that it will continue to comply with covenant terms in the fereseeable future
They therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparning the conselidated financial
slatements, as further discussed in noles to the consolidated financial statements

Subsidiary companies

The Group conducts its activities through subsidiary companies across the world A list of principal trading
subsidiaries 1 shown in note 30 to the consolidated financlal statemants

Financial Instruments

The financial risk managemant objectives and poiicies of the Group are set out In note 26 ic the conselidated
financial statemants

Exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee
The managers of the Company have decided (¢ apply for exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee for some
of its ellgible subsiciaries for the year ended 31 May 2015, as permitted by European Union (“EU™) directive. A

hist of subsidiaries applying for the audit exemption under parent guarantee is shown in note 32 {o the
consolidated financial statemenls

’ 9

gvln Montes
Manager
29 07 2015 i
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Audit report

To the Shareholder of
Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consohdated financial statements of Misys Newco 2 Sar] and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consohdated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2015, and
the consolidated statement of income, the consohdated statements of comprehensive income, changes

mm equuty and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information

Board of Munagers’ responsibility for the consclidated finanaial statements

The Board of Managers 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements 1 accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such nternal control as the Board of Managers determines 1s necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the “Réuisew dentreprises agréé”

Our responsibihty 1s to express an opimion on these finanwmal statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for
Luxembourg by the “Commssion de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasconable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit mvolves performmg procedures to obtan audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
“Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the
finanaal statements, whether due to fraud or error In malang those risk assessments, the “Réviseur
d'entreprises agréf” considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparanion and fair
presentation of the financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate m the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
mnternal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting esimates made by the Board of Managers, as well as cvaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opimon

PO - - - - - - as e

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B P 1443, L-1014 Luxembourg
T +3524948481, F +352 499848 2900, www pwe lu

Cabinet de réwision agreé Expert-comptuble (autorisahon gouvernementale n°10028256)
R C 8 Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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Cpimon

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financal position
of Misys Newco 2 § ar.l. and its subsidianes as at 31 May 2015, and of their performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Umion

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Manager's report, which 15 the responsibility of the Board of Managers, 1s consistent with the
consohdated financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Luxembourg, 29 July 2015
Represented by

/
/8

Philippe Duren
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l
Consolidated income statament for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

oll fguras in § millionsg Note 2015 2014
Revenue 1 880.5 9458
Operahing expenses 2 {824.2) {820 6)

Operating profit 56.3 1262
Finance costs 3 (338.1) (332 7)
Finance ncome 3 0.8 15
Net finance costs (337.3) {331 2)
Loss before taxation (281.0) (206 0)
Taxation 4 {30.2) (26.7)
Loss for the year (311.2) (232.7)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all fqures in S millions Note 2015 2014
Loss for the year (311.2) (232 7)
Other comprehensive mcome:
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gams recogmsed 20 06 02
- Tax income / (loss) on terns taken diractly to aquity 10 {5.8) 09
(52) 11
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchanga difference an the translation of foreign operations . 141 (70)
Other comprehenslve incomae / {foss) for the year {net of tax) 8.9 {59)
Total comprehonsive loss for the year (302.3) {238.6)
Attributable to
- Owners of ihe parent {302.3) (238 8}

The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated finanaial siatemenls

12




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.

Consolidated statement of financlal positien as at 31 May 2015

all figures In § milions Nota 2015 2014
Nan-current assets
Goodwll 6 1,614.1 1.686.3
Other intangible assets 7 8188 1,083 4
Property, plant and equipment 8 287 348
Investments 9 25 28
Deferrad tax assats 10 9.6 123
Denvabtive financia! instruments 11 82 14
Trade and other receivables 12 316 233
26135 2,854 3
Current assets
Trade and other recelvables 12 3358 3758
Denvative financial nstruments 1 183 3.5
Current tax asset 31 24
Restricted cash 22 08 14
Cash and cash equivalénts 22 40.3 508
398.8 4339
Total assets 3.012.1 3,288 2
Equity and habilities
Share capital 13 - -
Share premium 13 104 10 4
Cther reservaes 14  (1,031.2) {728 9)
Total equity {1,020.8) (718 5)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 88 120
Barrowings 16 1,803 7 1,846 9
Preferred Equity Certificates 17 1,564.8 1,391 §
Derivative financial instruments i1 11 43
Deferred tax habilihes 10 148 4 1823
Provisions 18 40 52
Deferred iIncome 19 156 146
Retrement benefit obligations 20 67 73
3,653.1 3,464.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 182.6 2138
Denvative financial instruments bk 40 62
Current tax liabiltties 523 527
Provisions 18 28 27
Deferred income 19 2381 267.1
479.8 542 5
Total equity and liabilities 3,0121 3,288 2

Tha notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.

The financial staternents on pages 12 to 69 were approved by the Board of Managers on 29 O#. 2215

d signed on its behalf by £ fy,,, Manf65, 8 Nasager

by

anager
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.L

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 May 2015

all figures in § milltons

Share
capital

Share Other Total
premium reserves aquity

Balance at 1 June 2014

10.4 {728.9) (718.5)

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

- (311.2) (311.2)
- 8.9 89

Total comprehensive loss for the year

- (302.3) (3023)

Balance at 31 May 2015

10.4 (1,031.2) (1,020.8)

Balance at 1 June 2013

102 {490.1) (479 9)

Loss for the year

- (2327) (2327)

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (59) (69)
Tolal comprehensive loss for the year - - (2386) (2388)
Other movemenls - 02 (0.2) -

Balance at 31 May 2014

104 (728.9) {718 9)

The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

14



Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Consolidated staternent of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 3 May
oil figures In $ milllons Note 2015 2014
QOperating activities
Net cash flow generated from operations 21 2917 3100
Interest paid {145.1) (148.1)
Interest receved - 01
Net taxation pald 4 {72.5) (53 1)
Net cash flow from oparating activities 74.1 1089
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 (24.9) (41 5)
Expanditure on developed software 7 {34.2) {319)
Reduction n restricted cash 22 05 10
Purchase of thrrd party sofiware 7 (4.4) (8 8}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 {6.5) {12 6}
Proceeds from sale of nvestments g - 0.5
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8 - 01
Net cash flow used In investing activities {69.5) {03.2)
Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 22 {13.1) {19.5)
Proceeds from borrowangs 22 - 2472
Capitalised fees in respect of bank loans 22 - {20 6)
Redemption of PECs 17 - {198 B)
Net cash flow {used in){from finanging activities {(13.1) 83
{Decreasa}/ Increase In cash and cash equivalents in the year (8.5) 240
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 50.8 26 3
Differences on exchange (2 0) 05
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 403 508
The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an Integral part of these consolidated financlal statemants
15
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Company I1s a 'Soctété 4 Responsabilité Limitée', domiciled in Luxembourg The Company's country of
Incorporation is Luxembourg and its registered address 1s 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273 Luxembourg

Nature of entity operations and principal activities

The Group’'s principal activibes are the development, management and hicensing of a variely of software
products and solutions to customers in the financial services industry

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with Interpational Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) and IFRS Interpretations Commuttee (“IFRIC") interpretations as adopted by the
EU and in accordance with Luxembourg laws end regulations

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRS requires the use of certain cnitical accounting
estimates It also requres ranagement to exercise Hs judgernent in the process of appiying the Group's
accounting policies

The presantation of the consolidated income statement has been revised to align with how costs are incurred
and managed by the Group Cost of sales, sales and markehng expenses, and general and administrativa
expenses have been condensed mto operating expenses and supplemented by note 2 which discloses a
breakdown of certain ine items

Gaing concern

The Group's forecasts and projechons, laking account of reasonable potential vanatons in trading
performance, show that the Group 18 expected o operate within the level of its current financing facilities for
the foreseeable future In making this assessment, the Group has considerad bank covenant compliance and
the ability to operate within those covenants with adequate headroom lo take into account rnisks in fulure
expected cash flows,

After making enquines, the Managers of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational axistence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolldated financial statements

Changes in accounting pollcy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The followings IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations and amendments have been adopted by the Group but none
had any material impact on tha Group results or financial posihion

+ IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and related amendments to 1AS 27 Separate Financial
Statements,

o IFRS 11, “Jownt arrangements’ and related amendments o IAS 28 Investments in Agsociates and Joint
Ventures,

= |FRS 12, ‘Dusclosures of interests in other entities?,
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 -invastment entities,

« Amendment to IAS 32, *Financial instruments Presentation® - Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabiiitias,

*  Amendment to 1AS 386, ‘Impairment of assets’ — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets,

*  Amendment to IAS 39, 'Financial instruments: Recogmtion and measurement’ — Novaton of
denvatives and continuation of hedge accounting, and

e |FRIC 21, ‘Levies’
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

New standards, amendments and inferprefations not yet effeclive

Tha following new standards, interpretations, improvements and amendments to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting penods beginning on or after 1 June 2015 or later
periods but the Group has not adopted these early

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' (not yet endorsed by the EU);
Amendmenis to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (not yet endorsed by the EU);
Amendment to IFRS 11,'Joint arrangements' on acguisition of an interest in a joint operation” (not yet
endorsed by the EU),

« IFRS 14,’Regulatory deferral accounts’ {not yet endorsed by the EU),
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 (effective from 1 June 2015),

=« improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 (effective from 1 June 2015),

¢  Amendment to IAS 16 ,'Property, plant and equipment' on depreciation and Amendment to |AS
38,'Intangible assets’, on amortisation (not yet endorsed by the EU),

* Amendment to IAS 19, 'Defined Benefit Plans’' ~ Employee Coninbutions (effective from 1 June 2015),
and

« Amendment to IAS 27, 'Separate financial statements’ {(not yet endorsad by the EU)

The Group has undertaken an Initlal review of the wmpact of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments and has concluded that they are unlikely to significantly impact the Group's results or financial
position

On 28 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board {“IASB”) 1ssued IFRS 15 'Revenue from
contracts with customers’ The standard is expected to become effective for the Group's accounting penod
beginning on 1 June 2018, subject to endorsement by the EU The Group is in the early stages of analysing
the potential Impact of the standard on its cansohdated financial statemente This Impact could be material, in
particular in the areas of allacating revenue to the different performance obligations under one contract and the
timing of revenue recogmtion

A summary of the Group’s accounting policies is given below
Accounting convention

The consolidated financial information has been prepared under tha histoncal cost convention, except for
certain items which are measured at faw value, as disclosed in the accounting policies below These
accounting palicies have been consisiently applied fo ali years presanted, unless otherwise stated

Basis of consolidation

The Group’s flnancial statements consolidate the finanoal statements of Misys Newco 2 Sarl and its
subsidiary undertakings. On acgusition, the assets, habihties and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition

Subsidiaries are all entities (Including structured entities) over which the Group has control The Group
controls an entity when the Group s exposed to, or has nghts to, varable retums from its involvement with tha
entity and has 1hs abillty to affect those returns through its power over the enlity

Subsidiary undertakings acquired dunng the year are included in the financial statements from the date at
which control passes to the Group Subsidiary undertakings disposed of are included In the financial
statements up to the date at which contral passes from the Group Accerdingly, the consoldated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flow
include the results and cash flows for the period of control

Inter-company transacions, balances and unreelisad gans and losses on transacticna between Group
companies are ehminated
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Misys Newco 2 8.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Revenue recognition

Revenua represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable from clients for services provided by
the Group, stated net of discounts, retums and value added taxes. Revenue is recogmised when a legal night to
consideration exists and can be reliably measured, delivery to a customer has occurred with no significant
vendor obligalions remalning and where the collection of the resulting receivable 1s considered probable,

Where these crcumstances exist but no invoica to the customer has been raised, under the {erms of the
caontracls, revenue is recogmised but the corresponding receivable 15 shown as accrued income In tha
consohdated statement of financial posihon

The Group generates revenue as follows

+ Licence fees,

« Mantenance feas,

» Professional Services, and
+ Subscriptions

Revenue [s recogrised In accordance with IAS 18 — ‘Revenue’ In determining the amounlt of revenue to be
recognised, management exercise judgemenl, and also adopt estimates in reaching certain conclusions
Management considers guidance from software industry common practice in forming its estimates

Licence fees

The Group grants its customers licences to use ils softwara This revenue can relata to (a) ILF, where a fee
relatas lo the nght to use a software product, including significant upgrades pertaining to customers
purchasing new modules or user rights, and (b} Roadmap Accelarator (“RA”), where a fee I1s payable for a
significant vanation of an existing product.

Where a (icencea 1s not subject to matenal modificatton or customisation certain critera must be met before
revenue 1 recognised

Arrangement existence Is evidenced,

Software has passed itemal quahty checks and 15 deemed generally avatlable,

Delivery to the custlomer has occurred,

Risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the Group to the customer,

Revenue, and associated cosis, can be measured reliably and are not subject o further adjustment,
and

» Collection from the customer i1s deemed probable

In instances where significant vendor obligations exist, revenue recognition is deferred until the obhigation has
been satisfied No revenue Is recognised for multiple delivenes or multiple element products if an element
ramains undelivered and s essenbal to the functionality of the elements already delivered

ILF on heawly custormised softwara, together wath assoclated Professional Services revenuas, are treated as a
single deliverable and recogrised on a percentage of completion basis over the penod from commencement of
performance {o customer acceptance

Maintenance fees

Mantenance of software 1s often included in licence agreements The pricing is usually based on a percentage
of the ILF, which is common practice in the mdustry The Mamntenance fee provides customers with dights to
unspecified product upgrades, enhancements and help desk access dunng a defined support penod This
revenue s recognised rateably over the term of the contract
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Professional Services

Revenue is generated from training, consulting and implementation services These services are reflected in
separate coniracts to cence contracts and can be either on a tme and matenals or fixed price basis A
percentage of complation approach Is adopted to account for fixed-price contracts, which is In accordance with
the rules applicable to long-term contract revenue recognition n 1AS 11 — ‘Construction Contracts’ This
involves a comparisen of costs incurred ta date with telal expected costs of the contract Losses on contracis
are recognised at the point a loss Is foresaen by reference to estimated costs of completion

Subscriptions
in addition to the revenue streams above, the Group earns other ravenuas as follows:

« Hosting revenue 1s generated by way of an additional subscription fee payabie to tha Group to provide
a software hosting service Fees are recognised on a siralght-line basis over the term of the contract,

* SaaS revenus is generated whereby the customer pays a subscriphion fee to cover the softwars,
matntenance and hosting servica Fees aro recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the
contract, and

= Leasing revenus 1s generated by way of granting customaers licence access, and providing
maintenance support Fees are recognised on a straight-hne basis aver the tarm of the contract

Multiple efement arrangements

The Group often enters nto transactions with customers that include multiple elements such as software
licence, maintenance and professional services revenues The revenues from these arrangements are
generally accounted for separately The factors considered in determining whether the revenue should be
accounted for separately include tha nature of the services, the existence of the farr value for the separable
slements, the hming of payments and tha acceptance cntera on the realisahilly of the software licence fee

Revenus from mulliple element arangements 1s allocated to the different elements based on therr fair value
Fair valus for professional servicas s determined by market pnicing for equivalent performance obiigation sold
saparately or the "cost plus reasonable margin® meathodology when market data does not exist

When revenue is objectively determined for alt undelivered elements with the exception of one delvered
element, the resldual rmethod 1s used to allocate revenue to the delivered element. Revenue for delivered
glements 15 recogrused when the revenue recognition criterla descnbed above are met and revenue is free
from any future uncertainties or adjustments atirbutable to the undelivered elements from which a portion of
the fees have been allocated Revenus for any undetivered elements 1s deferred and recognised when the
product 1s delivered or over the penod in which the service is performed

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes covering the majonty of ts employees
The costs of these pension schemes are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred In
addition, the Group has a closed funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK, as well as a number of
other smaller defined benefit arrangements outside the UK

The remaining active members of the closed UK defined benefit scheme now contnbute to a dsfined
contribution section of the scheme and do not accrue further benefits under the defined benefit scheme Fuil
independent actuarial valuations of the defined benefit scheme are carried cut on a regular basis and updated
at each reporting date The assels of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group

Pension scheme assels are measured at fair value Pension scheme liabilitres are measured using a projected
umt method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high qualily corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the labiity The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it 15 recoverable) or deficit 15
recognised in full on the consolidated statement of financial positon Any cument or past service cost and
administration expenses are recognised in the consolldated income statement as are the net interest on the
schemes’ liabilities
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Misys Newco 2 S.Ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from expenence adjusiments and changes In actuanal assumptions are
charged or crecited fo equity in the statement of comprehensive incoma as thay arise,

Leases

Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases Payments made under operating leases such as rentals, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line hasis over the period of the lease, taking into account the benefit of any
rent free period or other incentives

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rawards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Property, plant and agquipment held under finance leases is
capitalised In the consolidated statement of financial position at the lower of cost or present value of the
minimum lease payments and 18 depreciated over its useful life The capital elements of future obligations
under ieases are included as habilities i the consolidated statement of financial position

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease cbhgation &0 as (o
achieve a constant rate of reium on the remaning balance of the liability

Taxation

Taxation comprises the amount chargeable on the profits for the year, logether wath deferred taxation
Deferred taxation ts recogrused, using the hability method, in respect of all temporary differences arising
between tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements

Deferred tax assets ara recogrised only to the axtent that it is probable that thera will be sufficient taxable
profits from which the underlying temporary chfferences can be deducted or where there are deferred tax
liabilties agamst which the assetls can be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in
which the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liabikty Is seitied hased on lax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

The carrylng amount of daferred tax assels is reviewad at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it 1s no longer probable that sufiicient profils will be avallable Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future profils will
allow the deferred {ax asset to be recovered

Current and deferred tax 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement except when the tax relates to
itams charged or credited directly to the statement of comprehensive income or directly In equily, in which
case the tax Is also recegnised in the other comprehensive income or directly in squity

Foreign cusrencies

ltems included in the financial statements of Group entiies are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which each entity operates known as the funclional currency The consolldated
financial statemants arae prasented in US Dollars as this 1s consldered to be the currency of the prmary
economic environment of the Group

Foreign currency transaclions are translated Into the functional currency of the subsidiary using the exchange
rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions or valuatlon where iterns are re-measured Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monelary assets and liabllitles denominated In foreign currencies are recogrised in the
consohdated income statement within ‘Operating expenses '’

Goodwill and intangible assets recognised on the acquisition of entities whose functional currency 1s not US
doilar 1s treated as an asset of that entity and translated at tha closing rate
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Group hedges its exposure to certan foreign exchange nsks using derivatives and foreign currency
berrowings Detals of the accounting policies in respect of these items are given in the denvative financial
mnstruments section

Transiation of Group companies

Financial statements of subsidianies whose funchonal currency 1s not the US Dollar are translated into US
Dollar at the exchange rates prevaiing at the end of the reporting perlod for items in the statement of financial
position, and at average exchange rates for consolidated mcome statement items

All effecls of exchange rate adjustments are recogrused In the consolidated income statement, with the
exception of exchange rate adjustments of invesiments in subsidianes ansing from

» the translahon of foreign substdiaries’ net assets at the beginning of the year to the exchange rates at
the end of the reporting perniod,

« the translation of foreign subsidianes’ statement of comprehensive income from average exchange
rates to the exchange rates at the end of the reporting pened, and

« the translation of non-current intra-Group balances that are considered to be an additon to net
investments In subsidiaries

These specific exchange rate adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive mcome

If the subsidiary underiaking 18 subsequently sold or closed, cumulative galns or losses recogmised in other
comprehensive ncome are recycled to the consolidated Income statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal If a non-current intra Group batance is seftled or altered to a point it 1s no longer considered part of
the net investments in a subsidiary undertaking any related foreign exchange gains or losses which had
previously been recorded to the statement of other comprehensive income are recycled to the consohdaled
income statement as part of operating expenses

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquistion method of accounting fo account for business combinations The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary Is the far value of the assets transferrad, tha labities assumed
and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group The considsration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or habiity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisttion-related costs are expensed as
incured  Identifiable assets acquired and lisblliies and contingent labitties assumed i a business
combination are measured intially at their fair values at the acquisition date

On acquisition, specific intangible assets are dentfied and recognised separately from goodwll and then
amortised over their astmated useful ives These include such items as brand names, customer relationships
and complete technology, to which velua 1s first attnbuted at the hme of acquisition The capitalisation of these
assels and related amortisation charges are based on judgements about the value and economic Iife of such
items These economic lives for intangible assets are estimaled at between three and fifteen years

The excaess of purchase consieraton and the fair value of separable assets and labiities acquired 1s
allocated to goodwill and recognised as an intangible asset Goodwll s not amortised but is reviewad for
impairment annually and whenever there 1s a petential indicator of impairment Any impairment 1s recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed

On the disposal of a previously acquired subsldiary, the attnbutable amaount of goodwill Is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Transaction costs
Acquisihon-related costs are expensed as tncurred once any related contingencies have been resolved.
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Misys Newco 2 S.Ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the yaar ended 31 May 2015

Other intangible assets and research and development expenditure

Research expenditure Is expensed in the penod in which it 15 incurred Expendilure on developed software 18
capitalised when the Group 15 able to demonstrate all of the following. the technical feasibilily of the resulting
assat, the ability and intentton to complete the development and use or seli it, how the asset wil generate
probable future economic benefits, and, the abiity to measure rellably the expenditure altnbutable to the asset
dunng Its development Capltalised expenditure on iniernally developed software 1s amortised over is useful
economic life In line with expected fulure economic benefits, once the related software product is avallable for
use

Development costs which do nol meet these criteria are recognised in the consolidated incoma statement as
mncurred and are not subsequently capitalised

Development costs that are direclly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique third party
software products controlled by the Group are recogmised as intangible assets when the following criterta are
met

It 1s technically feaslble to complete the software product sa that it will be available for use,
Managemant intends to complate the software product and use or sell it,

There is an ability to use or sell the software product,

It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits,
Adequate technical, financial and other rescurces to complete the development and to use or sall the
software product are available, and

s The expenditure attnbutable to the software product duning its development can be reliably measured

Diractly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the soflware development
employes costs and an appropriate portion of relavant avarheads Other development expendiures that do not
. meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are nol recagnised as an asset in a subsequent period

Computar software development cosls recognised as assets are amortised over their estmated useful lives,
which 15 between three and seven yaars Cosis associated with maintaiming computer software programs are
recognised as an expense as incurred

Intangsble assets purchased separately, such as software licenses that do not form an integral part of related
hardware, are capitalised at cost and amortised over their useful economic bves

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination are imitially measured at farr value and amortised
on a systematic basis that reflects the pattern of benefits expacted over their useful economic lives If the
pattern of future benefits cannot be determined reliably, the intangible assets ara amortised on a straight line
basis The amortisation penod is reviewed annually

Estimated useful kves by major class of asseis are as follows

Camplete technology 3 -7years

Cuslomer ralationships 4 - 15 years

Other acquired intangibles 2-15 years

Internally developed software 3-5years

Thurd party software 3-7years . ‘

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprectation Cost includes the orginal
purchase pnce of the asset and the cost attributable to bringing the asset to ts warking condition for its
intended use Depreciation Is caiculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the cost, less estimaled
resldual value of each asset, over its expected useful hfe
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l,
Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis for the year ended 31 May 2015

The residual values and useful economic lives of properly, plant and equipment ara reviewed annually The
useful lives by major class of asset applied from the date of purchase are

Buitdings 20 - 30 years
Leasehold improvements & - 15 years or the penod of the lease if shorter
Computer and other equipment 4-15years

Impairment of assets

Assels that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changas In circumstances ndicate that the carrylng amount may not be recoverable and annually in the fourth
quarter

Gaoodwill and developed software not yet brought into use are reviewed for impairment annually For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which goodwil 1s allocated and
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group®s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergiss of the
combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there I1s an indication that the unit may be impared if the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit Is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the mpairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the camying amount of any goodwlll allocated to the unit and then to tha other assets of the urit pro-rata on the
basis of the camying amount of each asset in the unit Prior impairments of assets {other than goodwill) are
reviewed for possible reversal annually

An mpairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceads its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the hligher of an asset’s fair value less costs o sell and its value in use

Any gain or loss ansing on derecogmbion of the asset 13 included in the consolidated income statement in the
year the asset I1s derecognised

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following categories ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘lcans and
recervables’, and ‘available for sale’.

*Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ are financial assets held for trading or where dasignated
as such on original recognition Denvatives are also classifled as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedges Gains and losses ansing {rom changes in far vaiue of ‘financial assels at fair value
through profit or loss® are included in the consolidatad income statement in the petlod in which they arlse
Financial assets at faw value through profit or loss are subsequently held at fair value

*Loans and receivables’ are non-denvative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an actwve market and are carned at amortised cost

‘Avallable for sale’ financial assets are measured at fair value Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in
equrty except for impairment losses, interest and dividends ansing from those assets which are recognised in
the consolldated income statemant

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Include cash held at bank and in hand together with short-term highly hiquid

investments with an orniginal maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant change in value
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Restricted cash

Restncted cash is disclosed separately on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position and
denoted as restricted when It 1s not under the exclusive control of the Group

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair vaiue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Where there 1s objective ewvidence lhat there is an impairment loss, the amount of loss 18 measured as the
difference betwsen the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effechive interest rate The amount of loss is recognised in the consolidaled ncoms statement within
operating expense The carrying amount of a receivable is reduced by appropriate allowances for esbtmated
Irrecoverable amounts through the usae of an allowance account for rade recevables. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there 15 no expectation of further recovery Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previousty wnitten off are credited against operating expenses in the consolidated mmcome statement

Investments

Equily investments are classified as far value through profit or loss' Gains and lossas arising from changes n
fair valus are included in the consolidated income statement in the peried m which they anse

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial habdites and equily instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
amrangements entered into An egquily instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of tha Group after deducting all of its liabiliies

Trade payablas

Trade payables are recognised wutiaily at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effactive interest method

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and I{ Is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and this amount s
capable of being relably estimated If such an obligation 1s not capable of being reliably estimated, no
provision 1s recogrised and the item 1s disclosed as a contingent hability where material,

Cnerous praperty contracts

Prowision for onerous lease commitments on property contracts 1s made when a property is no longer used by
the Group and 13 based on an estimate of the net unavoidable lease and other payments In respect of these
properttes includng dilapidation costs  These comprise rental and other property costs payable, plus any
tenmnation costs, less any iIncome expected to be denved from the properlies being sublet The prowvisions are
discounted at an appropriate rate to take into account the effect of the hme valus of money

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of term loans, overdrafts and other short term facilities, and are initrally recognised at fair
value less direclly attnbutable transaction costs and are subsequently measursed at amortised cost using the
effective interest ratle method The difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consclidated income stalement, within finance costs, over the pericd of
the borrowings Borrowings are classified as current liabilittes unless the Group has an unconditional nght to
dafer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date
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Preferred Equity Certificates

Tha Group has additronal financing in the form of PECs 1ssued to the immediate parent company Misys Newco
S ar) The PECs are repayable in cash within a period of up to 49 years from inceplion and have a contractual
requirement to accrue and pay inferest and accordingly have heen classified as a lability

Derivative financial instruments

Denvative financial mstruments are initially recegnised at fairr value on the date a denvatwe is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at far value The method of racognising the rasulting gain or loss depends on
whether the dernvalive 15 designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the ilem being hedged
Changes in the far value of derivative financal instruments, where they are not designated as hedging
instruments, are recognised In the consolidated income statement because the requirements that permit
hedge accounting in certain circumstances ware nol satisfied

Certain forecast non-US Dollar cash flows of the Group in key currencies are hedged with forward currency
contracts. Hedge accounting 18 not apphed and the gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated income
statement in operating expenses

Certain financial assets and liabllites, which are denommated n currencies other than those of the functional
currencies of the entities concarned, may also be hedged using forward currency contracts Gains and losses
on these contracts are recorded in operating axpensges logether with offsetting gains and losses on the
underlying items

Embedded derivatives .
Certain long-term software licensing contracts are pnced in currencies which are not the functional currencles
of the entities entering utto the confracts or are not common contracting currencies In the location in which the
fransaction takes place Such contracts are considered to contain an embedded foreign currency dernwvative
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporting date Gains or
losses on these darvatives are charged or credited to the consclidated income statement The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years’ duration and this 1s therefore the penod over which the assels and hiabilibes
racognised in the consolidated statement of financial positicn ara expected to crystalise

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as egquity Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the 1ssue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equity as & deduction, net of tax, from proceeds

Government grants

Govemment grants are not recognised untl there 1s reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received The effect of grants, which include Incentives
structured as R&D tax credits, is to reduce the value of the asset of expense

Government grants whose pnmary condifion 1s that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwlse acquire
non-current assefs are disclosed as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
in making estimates and assumptions, actual outcomes could differ from those assumptions and estimates.
The cntlcal judgements that have been made in arnving at the amounts recognised in the Group’s financial

staternents and the key sources of estimation uncertalnty that have a significant risk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and lhiabiliies within the next financial year 1s discussed balow
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Revenue recognition

The recogniicn of ILF revenue 13 dependent upon far value allocabon, separabiily of componants,
collectabily and there being no significant vendor obligations outstanding Management exercises judgement
in assessing whether such obligations are significant and, If necessary, the valus of the revenue to be
deferred Such revenue is recognised on signing only for products which are judged to be 1n a state fit for
general avallability and ready to be shipped, to contam all planned compgnents and to have completed quality
testing.

The revenue and profit of fixed price Professional Services contracts is recognised cn a percentaga of
completion basis when the outcome of a confract can be estimated relably Management exercises
Judgement in 1dentifying cnerous service contracts and determining whether a contract's outcome can be
estimaled rehably Management also makes estimates in the calculation of future contract costs, farr values of
contracts, the valua of discounts gwen, the valua of upgrade clauses in contracts which are used in
determining the value of amounts recoverable on contracts and timing of revenue recognition Estimates are
continualiy revised based on changes in the facts relating to each contract

impawrment of goodwill and intangible assels

Goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment  An impairment review requiras an
estimate to be made of the ‘value in use’ or the *fair value less costs to sell’ as appropnate The value in use
calculation includes estimates about the future financial performance of the cash generating units, inciuding
management's estimates of long-term operating margins and long-term growth rates In the current perled,
management has assessed the recoverable amount of the cash genarating units based on their values in use
and no impairments have ansen A reasconably possible chiange in the assumptions used however ¢ould result
in impairment and consequently a sensiltvity analysis has been disclosed in note 6

Capitahsation of development costs

Expenditure on developed software 15 capitalised when the Group 1s able to demonstrate all of the following

the technical feasibility of the resulling asset, the ability and intentien to complete the development and use or
sell it, how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits, and the ahility to measure rehably the
axpenditure altributable o the asset during its davelopment Management estimates the future sales and long-
term operating margins of the assat

Cnerous property conliracts

Property provisiens require an estimate to be made of the net present value of the future costs of vacant and
sublel properties The calculalion includes estmates of fulure cost Involved, including management's
estimates of the long term letting potental of the praperties

Taxation

Tax authonties continue to increasa therr requiraments on the maintenance of a good tax control framework on
which to base the multiple tax fiings the Group Is requred to make to numerous authontes globally
Management use this documented process to review key judgement risk areas to determine the financial
statement impact from these fllings Tax authorities are also examining rmore closely how low taxable profits
are matched to business activittes conducted in different junsdictions

These sstimates and judgements are regularly reassessed and changes In the expected financial statement
impaci accountad for in the perlod In which the reassessment 1s made

Provision for the impairment of irade recervables and accrued fncome

Provision for the imparment of trade recesvables and accrued income regquires an estimate for the
recoveramity of the culstanding receivables and accrued income keeping In view varlous Implemeniation
challenges, disputes with customer, customers experiencing financial difficulty and receivables which have
become significantly aged Management’'s estimates include reaseonable resoiution of thesa matters along with
customer financial standing to ensure that the trade recevable will be collected
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Pensions .
The prasent value of the pension cbligations depands on a number of factors that are deternuned on an

actuana! basis using a number of assumptions The assumptions used in deterrmning the net cost income) for
pension include tha discount rate Any chenges in these assumptions will )/mpact the carrying amount of
pension obhgafions

Research and development tax credils

The Group has filed claims for research and development tax credits and management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount relies upon proceduras in place to support the assessment and documented processes
and controls to support these claims.
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1. Revenue

Revenue by activity 13 a3 follows

I,

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures In 8 millions 2015 2014
Imtiad icence fees 2054 2607
Maintenance fees 474.5 4782
Professional Services 164 4 1697
Subscriphion 36.2 372
880.5 9458
The Group is exempt from IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments’ and accordingly is not raquired to present
segmental information
2 Operating expenses
Operating expensas are comprised of the followng .
Year Year
ended [ - ended
31 M4y~ ~31 May
all figuras in $ milions Note 2015 2014
Non-recurring charges 235 105
Goodwill impairment 6 600 -
Amorlisation of other intangible assets 7 2102 2009
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 8 o8 90
Capitalised software development costs 7 (34 2) {31 9)
Capitaised software development costs written off 7 33 -
Investor's management feas 25 14 24
Realised trading foreign exchange loss / {gamn) {(12) 14
Net other foreign exchange {gain) / loss 116 (42)
(Gam) / loss on forward currency contracts 1" (37.3) 78
(Gain) / loss on embedded denvatives 1 {7.9) 40
Employee costs (see below) 363.2 397 4
Other pperating expanses (see below) 221.8 2233
824 2 8206

Non-recurring chargas consists of acquistion and integration costs of $1 1m (2014 $1.1m) and restructuring

related charges of $22 4m (2014 $9 4m)

dlun
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Employee costs compnse of

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

21l fgures in $ millions 2015 2014

Wages, salanes and benefits Including redundancy costs 3077 3400

Social secunty costs 388 407
Pension costs

Defined contnbution plans 15.8 153

Defined benefit plans 09 14

363 2 3974

Remuneration of Managers and key management parscnnel 1s disclosed in note 25 The average monthly

number of people employed by the Group during the year was 4,635 (2014 4,412)

Other operating expenses include

{ Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

ail figures fn $ miliens 2015 2014
Sales commissions and sales related bonus 29.1 355
Third party royalty fees 17.2 167
Agency fees 4.1 44
Subcontractor costs 375 292
Direct sales costs 17 a2
Markehing expenses 929 73
Travel expenses e 337
People related expenses 63 84
Occupancy costs . 327 326
Information systems cosls 309 324
! egal and professional costs 11 4 107
QOther cosis 92 132
221.8 223 3

During the year, the Group obtained the following services from the Company's auditors and its asspciates

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all Aigures tn § milions 2015 014
Fees payable to Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of the
07 o7
consolidated financial statements
Fees payable to Company's auditors and its assoclates for the audit of the
s 08 11
Company's subsidiaries
14 18
Tax services 0.7 o8
Other non-auddt services - 02
22 28
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3. Netfinance costs

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in $ miltons Note 2015 2014
interest expense
- Borrowangs 16 {1445) {144 4)
- PECs 17 (174.4) (167 6)
- Accrelion of discount on provisions 18 {0.2) (0 8)
Amaortisation of financing facility costs 16 {16 8) (18.2)
Net financing charge relating to pensions {0 2) {0 6)
Fair value losses on invesiments 2] {0 3} (0 1)
Other finance costs {1.7) (0 9)
Finance costs {338 1) (3327}
Interest recewved on cash and cash equivalents - 01
Accretlon of discount on {rade recevables 0.8 14
Finance Incoma . Q48 15
Net finance costs (337 3) {331 2)
4 Taxation
Taxahon on ordinary activitles
Year Yaar
ended ended
31 May 3 May
all Rgures In $ mittlons Note 2015 2014
Current taxation
Corporation tax on losses for the year (50 2) (53 0)
Adjusiments in respect of pnor year {5.5) (33)
Irrecoverable withholding taxes (12.1) {10 4)
Current laxation (67 8) (68 7}
Deferred taxation 10 37.6 400
Tax expensea (30.2) (26 7)
30




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The difference betwean actual tax income computed using a weighted average rate and the tax computed on
the Group’s loss can be explained as follows

Year Year
ended ended
. 31 May 31 May
all figures in § mions 2015 2014
Loss before taxation {281.0) (206 0)
Tax credit on loss on ordinary activities at the waighted average rate of 19 4%
(2014 18 8%) 54.6 87
Tax effacts of
Permansnt differences (14 5) 16
Interest expense not deduchible for tax purposes (24.7) {25 2)
Remeasurement of deferred tex due changes in tax rates 0.2 13
Temporary differences tor which no deferred tax asset recognised (32 5) {37 4)
Pnor year adjustments for current tax (5.5) (33)
Prior year adjustments for deferred tax 4.3 20
irrecoverable withholding tax . {12.1) {10.4)
Tax charge (30.2) (26.7)

The weighted average tax rate Is calculated using the underlying statutory tax rates in the location where the
profits arise Deferred tax movements are descnbed in note 10 -

LT
A tax charge of 35 8m (2014 credit of $0 9m) related to currency t%mféﬁaﬁ"dlﬁermcas has been recognised

N reserves

5 Business combinations

Acquisition of CCS

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued and outstandlng membarship interests of CCS for a
total consideration of $26 6m ($24 9m, net of cash acquired) CCS 1s a software business based In the US
which provides a loan ongnation product for the banking sector

The value of the assets and liabiiities acquired in the purchase of CCS and the associated far value
ad|ustmeants related to those assets ara as follows

Prowisional Provisional
fair value falr value at
all figures In S milllons Book value adjustmenis 8 August 2014
Intangible assets - 98 98
Property, plant and equipment 02 - 02
Cash and cash aguivalents 17 - 17
Trade and other receivables 18 - 18
Accrued income - 01 01
Trade and other payables (02) - {02)
Accruals (0 5) - (0 5)
Deferred income (1.2) {24} (36)
Net assets acqulred 18 1.5 9.3
Goodwill 173
Cash consideration 28.6
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An analysis of enterprise value of CCS is as shown below

8 August
a1l figures bn § mflions 2014
Consideration paid in cash 268
Cash acquired (1.7}
Enterprise value of CCS : 24.9

The assels and liabilitles and the amounts allocated to them are provisicnal and are subject to adjustment
during the year ending 31 May 2016 If new information Is obtaned about the facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisibon date

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of CCS is pnncipally attributable to future profits from new customers In new
markets and regions, through cross selling opportunitiss and the assembled workforce Costs associated with
the acquisition of CCS of $1 Om are included in operating expenses in the consolidated iIncome statement

Reveanua and profit of CCS were not matenal ta the Group’s financial performance in 2015 The revenue and
profit that CCS would have contributed had it been consolidated from 1 June 2014 would not have been
material to the Group

Acquisition of IND
On 8 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of IND for a total consideration of
€32 9m {$44 5m) IND s a front end systerm developer focused on the banking sector

Farr value Farr value at
all figures in $ milllons Book value adjustments 8 February 2014
intangible assels - 17.3 17.3
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 10
Deferrad tax assets (liabilities) 05 (3.3) (28)
Cash and cash equivalants 30 - 30
Trade and other receivables 32 - 32
Accrued tncome 11 0.2 13
Borrowings (28) - (2 8)
Accruals (15) - {15)
Deferred income (19) (13) (32)
Other liablitles (3 0). - {(30)
Net assets acquired (0.4} 12.9 12.5
Goodwl! 32.0
Cash consideration 44.5
An analysis of enterprise value of IND is as shown below
8 February
alf figures In § millions 2014
Consideration paid in cash 44 5
Cash acquired {30)
Borrowings discharged as part of acquisition 28
Enterprise value of IND 44 3

External debt of IND was settled by the Group as part of the acquisifion No subsegquent fair value adjustments
have been made since acquisiion Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of IND Is principally attnbutable to future
profits from new customers in new markets and reglons, through cross sefling opportunities and future profits
from new banking technologies strengthened by adding mobile banking technologias and the assembled
workforce Revenue and profit of IND were not matenal to the Group’s finanwal performance in 2014 The
revenua and profit that IND would have contnbuted to the 2014 year had it been consolldated from 1 June
2013 were not malenal
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6. Goodwill

31 May 3t May
all figures in § mitllons 2015 2014
Cost and net book value at 1 June 1,686 3 1,6480
Differences on exchange {29.5) 63
Acquisition of IND (note 5) - 320
Acquisition of CCS (note 5) 17.3 -
Impairment charge {60.0} -
Cast and net book value at 31 May 1,614 1.686.3

Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwil! acquired through businaess combinations has been allocated for the purposes of impairment testing to
cash-generating units ("CGUs") The Group conducts annual impairment testing on the camying value of
goodwiil, which 1s based on the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are delermined by way of value in use (*VIU™) calculations The
determinaticn of whether or not goodwil has been imparred requires an estimate to be made of the VIU of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated

The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flows of each CGU, based on tha approved budget for the year ending
31 May 2016 and medium term pians for lhe following three years which are consistent with the recent
financtal performance of the relevant CGU A growth rate of 3 8% (2014 4.5%) was used based on current
and expected future performance for year five Thereafter, a long term growth rate of 2% (2014 2%) has been
used

Change in CGUs

Managemant identfied CGUs as part of an mnitial Imparrment review conducted as at 31 May 2013 There has
been a series of events which concluded mn 2015 which have changed the way the Group operates This
includes

Rebranding of product base,

Evclution of product base - includes new products and suites of producls,
Full integration of the Turaz and Sophis businesses, and

Acquisition and integration of IND and CCS

As a result of the above, a re-assessment of CGUs for impairment review purposes was considered necessary
for the year ended 31 May 2015 to better reflect the construct of the business, the results of which are below

All figures n $ millions Reallocation

31 May 2014

CGus Cpening _ IND Turaz Scphis__ Closing 1 June 2014 CGUs

Capital Markets 3607 - 245.5 840 680 2 MisysFusionCapital

Sophis 2014 - - (84 0) 117 4 MisysFusioninvest

Core Banking 3918 a2zo - - 4238 MsysFusionBankingCore

Corporate

Lending 1564 - - - 1554 MisysFusionBankingtending

Enterprise Risk 710 - 190 - 800 MisysFusionRIsk

Transaction

Barnking 1890 - 305 - 2195 MisysFusionBankingTransaclions
14,3593 320 2050 - 1,686 3

Turaz 2950 - (295 0) - -

IND 320 {32 0) - - -

Total goodwill 1,686 3 - - - 1,686 3
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Upon initial recogniion goodwill was allocated to each CGU based on the expectad performance of the CGU
The reallocation of goodwill as set out above refiects the changes in how the Group operates and manages its

product base

The table below shows the allocation of the carnying value of goodwllt as at the reporting period by CGU

2015:
all Ngures in § milkons
FustonCapital 655 4
Fustoninvest 1174
FusionBankingCore 4191
FustonRisk 300
ﬁus:onBankmgTransaction 219 5
FusionBanking Lending 1727
Total 1,614.1

2014;

_all fgures in $ miltions
Capital Markats (excluding Sophis) 350 7
Saphis 2014
Core Banking 3918
Corporate Lending 165 4
Enterprisa Risk 710
Transaction Banking 1890
Turaz 2050
IND 320
Total 1.686.3

Kay assumptions

The key assumptions in the ViU calculations are discount rate appled, operatng margin and the long-term
growth rate of nel operaling cash flows

Discounl rate

Discount rates used are pre-lax and reflect specific nsks relaling to the relevant CGU or group of CGUs The
discount rates applied to CGUs were as follows

2015

Pre-tax
CGU discount rate
MisysFusionCapital 15 8%
MisysFusion!nvast 139%
MisysFusionBankingCore 15 0%
MisysFusionBankingtending 15 0%
MisysFusionRlsk 16 7%
MisysFusicnBankingTransactions 14 9%
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2014

Pre-tax
CGU discount rate
Capital Markets : 14 9%
Sophis 13 2%
Turaz 130%
Core Banking 14 0%
Corporate Lending 14 1%
Enterprise Risk 14 1%
Transaction Banking 156%
Qperabing margmn

Management determined budgeted operating margin based on prior performance and expectation of market
development The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in indusiry
reports

Long-term growth rate

Long-term growth rates of net operating cash flows are assumed equal to the long-term growth rate in the
gross demestic product of the country in which the CGU’s operations are undertaken, and were 2% (2014
2%) for penods beyond the first five years

Summary of restilts
The impairment reviews indicated significant headroom on an aggregated basis in companson to the total
carrying value of the combined CGUs o

For the MisysFusionRisk CGU the recoverable amount was less than s carrying value and an impatment
charge of $60 Om {2014 $nil) has been recognised against the carrying value of its goodwill The main driver
for the impairment was the revenua and operating margin detericration in 2015 experienced n his product
group, and the lower revenue outlock for tha forecast period

No impairment charges were identiied for any of tha other CGUs
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

As part of the VIU testing the Managers consider the impact that a range of scenaros could have on the key
assumptions within the VIU ¢alculation

Discount rate

The Group bases its estimate for the long-term pre-tax discount rate on its weighted average cost of capltal
{(“WACC") using long-term market data and industry data to derive the appropriate inpuls to the calculation
The Managers censider that & 1 5% change n the absaclute discount rate Is the maximum change that should
be considered as reasonably possible as this represents a 11% to 12% increase in the WACC

Oparating margin

The Managers consider that a reduction of 5% in the absolute valug of long-term operaling margins across all
CGUs would be the hmit of what could be considered to be reasonably pessible on the basls that the Group’s
cost base 13 flgxible and could quickly respond to market changes The Group is spread across a range of
geographies and a large recurring maintenance revenue stream which help to insulals it from more significant
changes

Long-term growth rato

The Group uses a long-term growth rate that 1s the same as the long-term growth rate of gross domeslic
product (GDP) of the territories In which the CGU is based Given these are long-term rates, the Directors
consider a change of 1% mn the absolute value of the long-term growth rate 1o be the limit of what is reasonably
possible
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Summary of sensitivity analysis

Sensivity analyses have been performed around the base case assumptions with the conclusion that no
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions would cause the regoverabie amount to be less than the
carrying amount in any CGU, ather than MisysFusioninvest.

In MisysFusioninvest, the recoverable amount based on value in use exceeded the carrying value of the net

assets by $48 4m A decline in annual short term revenue growth of 22 4%, a fall in long term growth rate by
3 9% or a nse in pre-tax discount rate by 3 2% would remove the remaming headroom

7 Other intangible assets

Other Total
Complete  Customer acquired acquired Developed Third party
all figutes in § mikons technblogy relationships intarigibles tnlangibles  sofiware  software  Total
Cost
At 1 dune 2014 7005 547 7 1576 1,405 701 184 1,4943
Differences on exchange (20) (21} 02) {4.3) {6 1) 23y {(12.7)
On acquisiion of CCS 64 24 40 9.8 . _ 9.8
(note 5)
Additions - - - - 342 4.4 8.8
Whriten off - - - - (33) - {3.3
At 31 May 2015 704.9 548.0 158.4 14113 94,9 20.5 15267
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 June 2014 (266 &) 977 (210)  (385.3) (80) (76) (400.9)
Differences on exchange 05 0.1 - 06 13 13 3.2
Amortsation charges
(note 2) {134 4) {46.4) {11.1)  {191.9) (15.1) {32) (210.2)
At 31 May 2015 {400.5) (144.0) (32.1)  {576.6) 21.8) {9.5) (607.9)
Net book value
At 31 May 2015 3044 404.0 126.3 834.7 73.1 11.0 918.8
Other Total
Complete  Customer acqured acquired Developed Third party

all figuros In $ miliens lechnology relationships intangibles intangibles  software  software  Tolal
Cost
At 1 June 2013 690 3 5411 156.6 1,388 1 373 90 14343
Differences on exchange 01 04 - 05 09 D6 20
On acquisition of IND 10 1 62 10 173 . . 173
{note 5)
Additions - - - - 9 B8 407
At 31 May 2014 700§ 5477 157 6 1,405 ¢ 701 184 14943
Accumulated amaortisation
At 1 June 2013 (134 3) {49 2} (10 4} (193 9) (22) {(37) (1998)
Diffarences on exchanga 01 - - 01 (01) (02) (02)
g‘;;‘l"e”';’)a""" charges (132 4) (485  (106) (1915) 57 (37) (2009)
At 31 May 2014 {266 6) {97.7) {210} {385 3) (8.0) (76) _ (4009)
Net book value
At 31 May 2014 4338 4500 136 6 1,020.4 621 108 1,0934
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Completa technology, customer relationships and other acquired intangtbles had a weiwghted average
remaining life of 32 months (2014 43 months), 112 months (2014. 124 months) and 143 months (2014° 155
months} raspectively at 31 May 2015

Thera was no tmpairment of other intangible assets in 2015 (2014 $nil)

8 Property, plant and equipment - = =

e —-

Bullding and Computer
{easehold  and other

oll igures in § millong i improvements equlpment Total

Cost

At 1 June 2014 237 299 538

Differences on exchange an 27) (4.4)
On acquisition of CCS (note o) - 02 0.2

Additions 08 5.7 6.5

Disposals (16) {17) (3.3)
At 31 May 2018 21.2 31.4 5286

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 June 2014 (8 4) (12 4) (18 8)
Differences on exchange 05 0¢ 14

Dapreciation charges (note 2) (29) (6 9) (9.8)
Dispodals 186 1.7 33

At 31 May 2015 (7.2) {187) (23.9)
Net book value at 31 May 2015 14 0 147 287

Bulldng and  Computer
leasehold and other

all fiqures In $ millions Improvemenis  equipment Total
Cost
At 1 June 2013 186 205 39.1
Differences on exchange 02 09 11
On acquisition of IND (note 5) 08 04 1.0
Additrons 44 86 13.0
Disposals {01 {0 5} {0 6)
At 31 May 2014 23.7 209 53 6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2013 (32) (59) (9 1)
Differences on exchange . {01 (0 6) (07}
Depreciation chardes (note 2) (31 (59) {9 0)
At 31 May 2014 (64) {12 4) (18 8)
Net book valus _at 31 May 2014 173 1756 348
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9. Investments

31 May 31 May
all figures in $ milhons 2015 2014
Opening balance 28 37
Differences on exchange - 03
Disposal - (0 5)
Reclassification to Trade and other recewvables - (0 6)
Falr value movements (0.3 {0.1)
Closing balance 2.5 2.8

The Group's mnvestments comprise investments in US and European Technology Funds and marketable
securities, which are classified as “fair vaiue through profit or loss” Fair value gains and losses are recognised
within financa costs The investments are denominated in US Dollar and Euro and is non-interast beanng

10. Deferred taxation

Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary deferred tax
ali fgures in § millons Losses  differences tiability Total
At 1 Jlune 2014 138 (4 6) (179 2) (170 0)
Credited (charged) to the consolidated Income
statement (note 4) (4 2) 29 KN 374
Impact of change In tax rates taken {o the
consolidated income statement {note 4) - 02 - 02
Credit related to components of other
comprehensive income - (58) - (58}
Ditferences on axchange - 0.1) (0 5) (0 B)
At 31 May 2015 96 7 43) (141.0} {138 B)
Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible mtangibles
temporary defarred fax
all iqures in $ milions Losses differences hability Total
At 1 June 2013 20.0 {4.1) (224 8) (208 9)
On acquisition of IND {note 5) - - (2 8) (2 8}
Credied (charged) lo the consolu}ated income (71) {(10) 371 290
statement (note 4)
Impact of change In tax rates taken to the
consolidated iIncome statement (note 4) - (0 3) 113 110
Credit related to components of other
comprehensive iIncome - 09 - 09
Dsfferences on ex¢hanga 09 (0.1) - 08
At 31 May 2014 138 {4.6) (17g 2) {170 0}
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Certain deferred tax assets and liablities have been offsat The followmng 1s an analysis of the deferred tax
balances {aftar offset):

31 May . 31 May
All figures in § millons 2015 2014

Goodwill Goedwill

Other and Other and

temporary  acquired temporary  acquired
Losses differences Intangibles Total Losses diffarences intangibles Tetal
Deferred tax assets 0.6 - - 96| ~ 44 79 - 123
Deferred tax iiabililes - {7.4} {141.0) {148 4 94 {12 5) {179 2) (182 3)
As shown above 9.6 {7.4) 141 0) {128.8 138 {4 6) {179.2) (170.0)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prebable that there will be sufficient future profits In
the respective tax jurlsdiction to utilise the assets In total, defsrred tax assats of $9 6m (2014 $12 3m) have
been recogrnised These include $9 6m (2014 $4 4m) of tax losses and $nil (2014 $7 9m) of other temporary
differences

Included within the deferred tax hability of $148.4m (2014 $182 3m) is $141 Om (2014 $179 2m) ansing from
acquired intangibles and goodwill This represents the net future tax habiiies ansing from tha underlying
goodwill and acquired intangibles Deferred tax llabilites of $31 Om (2014 $36 7m) wil! reverse within ane
year

Deferred tax 1s measured at the substantively enacled tax rates in force at the reporting date'for each country
that the Group operates in. As such, the deferred tax balance 18 subject to change as global tax rutes and
rates change On 8 July 2015 the UK government announced its intention to reduce the UK corporation tax
rate to 19% in 2017 and 18% In 2020, the effect of these changes wili ba a reduction In the deferred tax hability
of $2 2m in 2017 and $0 6m in 2020, these adjustments will go to the consolidated ncome statement

The Group has a number of tax assets that are not recognised as therr utilisabon 13 not deemed to be probable
due to nsufficient future profits expected to arise in country or because the tax losses can only be offset
against certan types of mcome or gains which are not expected to occur The componenis of the
unrecogmsed assets, slated gross, are UK capital losses of $328 7m (2014 $359 8m), Luxembourg corporate
tax losses $357 7m (2014 $443 7m), UK corporate tax losses and other tax deductions not recognised of
$402 8m (2014 $511 2m) and corporate tax losses in other funsdictions of $26 1m (2014 $87 6m)

Tha total of these when mulliphied by the respective country tax rate givas an unrecognised deferred tax asset
of $254 Tm (2014 $320 8m)

11 Derivative financial instruments

All denvative financial instruments are measured at their far velue and are calculated by reference to the net

present value of future cash flows, based on exchange rates and Interest rates quoted on international
financial markets, at the reporling date See note 26 {or additional disclosure

31 May 31 May
2015 2014

alifigurei In $ millions Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilties
Forward foreign currency contracts 208 (4.0) 36 59)
Embeddad denvatives 5.9 (1.1} 13 (4.6)
287 (5.1} 49 {10 5}

Analysed as follows:
Current 18.5 (4.0) 35 (6 2)
Non-current B2 (1.1} 14 (43)
267 (5.1} 49  (108)
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Forward currency ¢ontracts used to economrcally hedge cash flow risks

The aggregate notional amounts of the outstanding forward foreign currency cantracts at 31 May 2015 were
$353 9m (2014 $453.3m) The notional amount of outstanding contracts at 31 May 2015 compnse $152 2m
(2014 $274 4m) n Euro, $93 O0m (2014 $83 1m) n Pound Sterling, $48 1m (2014 $42 7m) in Indian Rupes,
$45 7m (2014 $39 7m)in Philippine Peso, $16 9m (2014' $13 3m) In Australian Dollar and other currencies

Selected expected future non-US Dollar key currency cash flows of the Group are hedged with forward
currency confracts Hedge accounting 1s not applied as the technical requirements of 1AS 38 ‘Financial
Instruments® are not met Gains and losses are recorded v the consolidated income statement within
operating expenses

Dunng the year a $37 3m gamn (2014 $7 8m loss) was recognised through operating expenses in the
consohdated incoma statement in relation {o forward currency contracts

Embedded derivatives

Cartain long-term software ficensing contracts are priced In currencies which are nof the functional currencies
of the entities entering inta the contracts, or are not common contracting currenctes in the location in which the
transaclion takes place Such contracts are considered to contain an embedded foraign currency denvative
which must be extracted from the hest contract and measured separately at each reporting date except where
the currency of the contract 15 recognised as a commen means of exchange in the country concerned Galns
or losges on these denvatives are charged or credited to the consolidated income statement The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years’ duration and this 1s therefore the period over which the assets and fliabilittes
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are expected to crystallise

During the year a $79m gan (2014 $4 Om loss} was recognised through operating expenses in the
consohdated iIncome statement in relation to embeddad denvatives

12. Trade and other receivables

31 May 31 May
all fiqures in $ miliflons 2015 2014
Trade receivables 208.4 2432
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables {5 5} (51)
Net trade receivables 2029 238.1
Research and devslopment credits 1.7 28
Cthor taxation and social secunty 3.6 11.3
Deposits 8.7 47
Qther recervables 8.7 68
Prepayments 206 262
Accrued income 92.6 859
Current trade and other receivablas 3358 3758
Research and development credils 168 156
Deposits 1.1 13
Prepayments 1.1 -
Accrued iIncoms 12.8 64
Non-current trade and other receivables 316 233
Tolal trade and other receivables 367.4 399 1

The provision for Imparred trade recevables relates to receivables from customers in financlal difficulty,
customer acceplance issues and ¢ancelled contracts
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The accrued income balance s stated net of a provistan of $8 3m (31 May 2014 $6 2m) for items where future
billings have become uncertain due to specific circumstances with identified customers

As at 31 May 2015, trade receivables of $96 6m (2014 $111 9m) were past due but not impaired These relate
to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default and where commercial discussions
lead management to conclude that it remains likely that the customer will pay without concesslons from the

Group

The againg analysis of net trade receivables fs as follows

31 May 31 May

all figures In $ millions 2015 2014
0-30 days 1008 1211
30-60 days ] 240 336
60-90 days 137 46 2
90-120 days 153 132
120-180 days 332 170
Over 180 days* 159 70
' 2029 238 1

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date Is the canrying value of sach class of recevable
mentioned above

Movemaents in the Group's provision for impairment of trade recevables are as follows

all figures in § milliens 2015 2014
Opening balance {5.1) {Mn
Provision for impatrment of recetvables (7.8) (40)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 30 6.4
Unused amounts reversed 38 49
Differences on exchange 06 {07)
At 31 May (5.5) (51

13 Share capital and share premium

Allotted, fully paid Share Share
share capital capital premium
Number of Sharas £ mililons 3 miiflons|
At 1 June 2014 and 31 May 2015 20,650 - 10.4

The authonsed share capital at 31 May 2015 consisted of 20,550 ordinary shares with a nommal value of $1
each (2014 20,550 ordinary shares with a nominal value of $1 each)

On 4 May 2012, a non-cash contribution of $2 Om was mads to the share premum of the Group as a result of
the transfer of the Turaz investment to the Group On 30 May 2012, Misys Newco S a r | made additional cash
contribution of $6 Om towards the share premium of the Group On 28 February 2013, Misys Newco  Sarl
contrtbuted to the share premium of the Group n the aggregate amount of $2 2m compnsed of 215,045,835
income Participating Preferred Equity Cerfificates ('IPPECs') with nominat value of $0 01 each
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14 Other reserves

Retained Translation

all figures in § milllons earnings roserve Total
At 31 May 2013 {458.8) (31.3)  {490.9)
Tolal comprehensive expense for the yaar - (232 7} (61) (238.8)
Actuanal gans - 02 - 0z
Other movement {0 2) - {02
At 31 May 2014 {691.5} (37.4) {728.9)
Total comprehensive expense for the year {311.2) 83 (302 9)
Actuanal gains 06 - 06
At 31 May 2015 {1,002.1 {29.1)  (1,031.2)
15. Trade and other payables

31 May 31 May
all figures n $ millons 2015 2014
Trade payables 83 99
Other taxation and social secunty 235 290
Other payables 84 14
Accrued expenses 142 4 1735
Currant trade and other payables 182 & 2138
Non-current accrued expenses 88 12.0
Tolal trade and other payablas 191 4 2258
Accrued expenses comprise.

31 May 31 May
Al figures in § milllons 2015 2014
Thud parly royalties and agency fees 17.4 123
Staff refated costs {including sales commissions and bonuses) 555 98 1
Intarast expenss 48.6 46 6
Rent expense 13.0 173
Other operaling costs 18.7 132
Total accrued expenses 151.2 1855
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16. Borrowings

Borrowings consists of two main categornes of externai debt, being term !E)ans which are governed by specific
agreements between the Group and a copsortium of lenders as dentiied m the following breakdown, and
overdrafts and other short tarm facilities which wera not drawn down at 31 May 2015 (2014 nil)

Term loans

31 May 31 May
all figuras In $ millions 2015 2014
Term loans 128 134
Capitalised arrangement fees (12 8) (13 4)
Borrowings — current - -
Ferm loans 1,857 § 1,819.3
Capitalised arrangement fees {53.8) (72 4)
Borrowings — non-current 1,803.7] 1,846 9
Total tarm joans 1,803.7] 1,846 9
Capitalised arrangement fees reclassifled o other receivables {5.3) {32)
Bank loans {(Nole 22} 1,798.4 18437

At 31 May 2015 the Group had the following secured term loans

First Lien credit agreement

« A $1,040 5m (2014 $1,051 2m}term loan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carries interest
at London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") + 4% (May 2014 LIBOR + 4%) Pnncipal repayments of
$2 7m are made every three months,

» A €186 Im (2014 €188 2m) term Igan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carnes interest at
LIBOR + 4 25% {May 2014 LIBOR + 425%)} Pnncipal repayments of €0 5m are made every three
months, and

= A $100m {2014 $100m) Revohlang Credit Facility ("RCF"), maturing on 12 June 2017 The credit facility
was unutilised at 31 May 2015 (May 2014 unutllised) although the Group drew on the facility at varlous
times duning the year Repayments of all drawn amounts are made within three months of drawdown and
are available for redrawing untii matunty

Second Llen credit agreement

= A $626m (2014 $625m} term ioan maturing on 12 June 2019 The term loan was fully drawn on 31 May
2015 and 31 May 2014 and carries interest at 12 0% (May 2014 12.0%) No principal repayments are due
during the term of the loan

No amendments have been made to the cradit agreements in the year ended 31 May 2015 On 16 August
2013, the terms of the First Lien credit agreement were renegotiated There was a net increase in the principal
amount of $39 1m and more favourable pricing of interest rates As a conseguence $4 1m of capitalised
arrangemeni fees ware witten off On 25 November 2013, there was a further net increase i the principat
amount of the First Lien credit agreement of $208 1m,the proceeds of which was used to redeem Serles A
PECs

The Group 15 subject to certaln finance covenanis under the credit agreements These speclfy a maximum
ratio of net borrowings to operating profit, before depreclation, amortisation and exceptional or non-recurring
items, deducting capitalised research and development cosls Thess covenants have not been breached
during the year Substantally all of the assals of the Group are pledged as security under the credit
agreements.
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No additicnal fees were capitallsed dunng the year ended 31 May 2015 The unamortised amounts remalining
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 May 2015 amounted to $71 9m of which $5 3m related
to the cument portion which was reclassified to other receivables as it exceeded the current portion of loans
(May 2014- $88 Om, of which $3 2m was reclassified) Amortisation expense for the year of $16 8m (2014
$18 2m of which $4 1m was accslerated due to amendments raferred to above) 1s inciuded in finance costs in
the consolidated ncome statement

The farr values are based on Future expected cash flows associated with borrowings are shown In note 26
Overdrafts and other short term facities

The Group currently has access to two short term uncommitted borrowing faciities provided by cammercial
banks The faciliies have a tfotal avalability of $48 Om and may be drawn as short-term loans or utilised as
overdraft faciities on refeted bank accounts At 31 May 2015 no amounts were drawn agamst tha faciitlies
(May 204 3$nil) Borrowings under the faciities are secured by parhcipation In the securily arrangements of
the First Lisn credit agreement

17. Preferred Equity Certlficates

In May 2012, the Group issued $1,257 1m as a senes of PECs, sach with a par value of $1, to s immediate
parent company, Misys Newco S 4 rl The PECs have a term of 49 years from the date of 1ssuance (effectve
date) but may be retred earier at any time by the Group or upon liquidation of the Company. Ths effactlve
date, interest rate and outstanding balances for each PEC serles are as follows

all figures in § millions

PEC Effective 31 May 31 May
Series Date Intarest 2015 2014
A 4-May-12 12.50%, compounded monthly 27.2 240
B 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 290 258
c 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 1566 1380
D 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 2418 2147
E 30-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 1,097 7 975 6
F 30-May-12 000% 50 50
G 4-May-12 0 00% 75 75
Tolal PECs 1,564.8 1,3918

Interest of $174 4m accrued during the year {2014 $167 6m), offset against a related party recewvable from
Vista Equity Pariners of $1 2m resulling in $173 2m capitalised to the PEC balance on 31 May 2015. The
Group redeemed $198 8m of the Series A PECs in November 2013
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18. Provisions

alt ﬂmues n § millions Proparty Othear Tatal
At 1 June 2014 74 0.8 7.9
Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement
- Additional provisions 27 - 2.7
- Release of unused amounts 02) {0 2) (0.4)
Accretion of discount 02 - 0.2
Utilisation of provisions (2.0) 02) 2)
Differences on exchange (1.3) {0.1) {1.4)
At 31 May 2015 8.5 0.3 6.8
Analysts of tofal provision:
Current 25 03 28
Non-current 40 - 4.0
6.5 0.3 8.8
all figures in § milions Property Other Total
At 1 June 2013 111 39 150
Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement
- Additional provisions 12 02 14
- Release of unused amounts 38) (11 {49)
Accretion of discount 09 - 09
Utillsatron of provisions (2 4) (03) 27
Reclassified to Deferred income - (21} {2 1)
Differences on exchange 01 02 03
At 31 May 2014 71 08 79
Analysis of total provision:
Currenti 19 0.8 27
Non-current 52 - 52
71 08 79
Property provisions

The property provisions compnse the net present value of the estimated future costs of vacant, sublet and
occupied properlies of the Group after taking into account dilapidation obligations in the lease The provision
relating to vacant and sublet properties 15 expected to be ullised on average over the next five years Dunng
the vear, the discount rate applicablae to all new property provisions was betwaen 1 9% and 2 75% Provisions
released dunng the year relate to dilapidation provisions which are na longer requirad as those properties have

been surrendered

Cther provisions

Other provisions relate to obligations following the acgulsition of third party scftware
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19, Deferred income

31 May 31 May
all fgures In $ milkons 2015 2014
Current
Mamtenance fees 2200 2338
Other revenue 18.1 333
238.1 2671
Non-current
Maintenance fees a3 64
Other revenus 123 az
Total deferred Income 15.6 14.6

Deferred maintenance fees represent amounts invoiced n advance for contracts which provide technical
support and trouble-shooting assistance n addition to upgradss and enhancemants to the Group's software
products and hardware maintenance. Maintenance feas are recognised as revenue ratably as the services are
provided over the period of the contract

Other revenue represents amounts invoiced primanty in respect of ILF for software products and Professional
Services for which the revenue recognition cnienia have yet to be saiisfied

20 Retirement benefit obligations

Defmed contribution schemes

The Group operates a numier of defined contnbution pensign schemes covering the majority of its employess
The cost of these pension schemes was $15 8m {2014 $15 3m) and was charged to the consolidated income
statement as Incurred and included within employee costs There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions
at either the beginrng or the end of the financial year

Definad benefit schemes

The Group operates vanous defined beneflt schemes across the world The most significant scheme 1s in the

UK and the disclosures In this note relate to that scheme iIn terms of the non-UK schemes, these are
summarised below

31 May 31 May
all figurea In § qulltons 2015 2014
Philippines funded scheme
Schems assets 4.7 ‘4 8
Scheme labiilies (62) (6.2)
Net liabihty (1.5} (1.4}
Unfunded schemes
United Arab Ermirates (23) {20)
India (19)} (17
Indonasia on (0 8}
USA (0.4) {0.6
Total pansion habilitres for non-UK schemes (GRa) {6.5
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UK Retirement Benefits Plan

In 2003/04 the aclive members of the Misys UK final salary retirement benefits plan (the “Plan”) ceased o
accrue benefits on the basis of therr final salary during the year Thereafter the benefits of the active members
accrue on a money purchase (defined contnbution) basis

The Plan 1s a funded, defined beneftt, final salary pension plan The level of benefils provided depends on
membaers® length of service and their salary at their date of leaving the Plan Pensicns in payment receve
different levels of Increases, some fixed (at 0%, 3% and 3 5% per annum) and some recaving inflationary
increases In ine with the increase in the Retail Pnces Index (“RPI") (subject to certain caps and floors) The
benefit payments are from trustes-administerad funds The amounts of contributions to be paid are decided
jointly by the employer and the Trustees of thae Plan Assets held in trust are governed by UK regulations and
practice The Plan's investment strateqy is decided by the Trustees, In consuitation with the employer The
board of Trustees must be composed of representatives of the empioyer and plan participants [n accordance
with the Plan's legal documentation.

The latest full actuanal valuaton of the Plan was carried out as at 31 May 2014, the assumptions of wiuch
have been updated to 31 May 2015 by qualified independent actuaries

The amounts recognised In the consolidated statement of financial posiion are determined as follows.

31 May 31 May
all igures In § miillons 2015 2014
Prasent value of funded cbhgations (83 8) (86 2)
Falr value of pldn assels 91.1 85 4
Surplus / (deficit) of funded plans 7.3 (0 8)
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Tota! surplus / {deficit) of defined benefit pension plans 7.3 (0 8)
Unrecognised asset due ta iput in IAS 19 'Employes benefits' paragraph 64 {7 3) -
Liability in consclidated statement of financial position - (08)
The year-end assels and liabilities in the Plan wers,
Of which
not quoted
on active
ell figures in § millions Toatal market %
Investment funds 56.2 365 61.7%
Buy-in contract 336 33.6 36.9%
Cash and other 13 1.3 1.4%
Total market value of assets 911 714 100 0%
Actuarial value of habilities (83.8)
Surplus i the Plan 73
Unrecognised asset due to imit in 1AS 19 'Employee benefits' {7 3)
paragraph 84
Net pension liabifity at 31 May 2015 -
The Plan does not invest in the Group's awn {ransferable financial instruments
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Of which
not quoled
on active
all figures in $ miliions Total market %
Investment funds 536 345 62 8%
Buy-in contract 313 313 38 7%
Cash and other 05 05 0 5%
Total market value of assets 854 66 3 100 0%
Acluanal value of habililies {86 2)
Deficit in the Plan {0 8)
Unrecogrised asset due to lmit In IAS 19 'Employee -
benglils’ paragraph 84
Net pension llabiity at 31 May 2014 (0 8)

The Trustee of the Plan bought a bulk annuity policy from. Legal & General Assurance (Pensions
Management) Limited In respect of the Plan's penstoners and their dependents as at 14 August 2012 An

estimate of the value of the buy-in contract is included in the agset value

The market value of assets 1s considered to bs matenally the same as the farr value

Mavement in the Plan assets and cbhigations during the year

Farr value
Present value of plan
2 figures in S millons of obligation assets Total
At 1 June 2014 (86 2) 854 {0 8)
Intarest (expense) / income {3 3} 33 -
(89 5} 887 (08)
Remaeasuraments.
Return on plan on assets excluding amounts included in Interest
oxpense n 167 167
Gan from change in demographic assumptions (0 5) - {0.5)
Gain from change in financial assumptions (9 2) - 92)
Experience losses 14 " 14
(83) 167 84
Exchange differences 77 (8 0) {0.3)
Paymaents from plans
Benefit payments 63 {6 3) -
At 31 May 2015 {83.8) 91.1 73

The actuanal gain recogmsed n the Group's other camprehensive income 1s $0 6m (2014 $0 2m) which is
comprised of a gain from the UK scheme of $0 8m offsst by an actual loss in the non-UK schemes of $0 2m

Pension costs of $16 Tm (2014 $16 7m) were recognised in the Group's consolidated income stalement in

operating expenses for both defined contnibution and defined benefit plans
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Movement in the Plan assets and obligations dunng the prior yaar ‘

Present Fair value

valug of of plan
all figutes in S mililons obligation assets Total
At 1 June 2013 (74 5) 748 03
Administration costs {03 - (0.3)
Interest (gxpense) / incoma (3.6)" 36" -
(78 4) 784 -
Remeasurements
Rsturn on plan on assets excluding amounts mcluded i Interest
expense - 24 24
Gain from change in financial assumplions . (34) - (3 4)
Experience losses 0 - 02
(32) 24 (0.8)
Exthange differences (7 8) 78 -
Payments from plans
Benefit payments 29 (29) -
Administration costs 03 (0 3) -
At 31 May 2014 (86 2) 854 (08)
The principal assumptions used in the valuations of the Plan are
2015 2014
- % %
Inflation {RPI) a4 36
Inflation (CPI) . 24 26
Rate of increase in penstons in payment
Fixed 3% 30 30
Fixed 3 5% 35 35
RPI max 5% rmin 3% ar 38
RPimax 5% min 3 5% 39 40
Paost 1988 Guaranteed minimum pension 21 22
Discount rata for plan liabibes 34 42

Assumphons regarding futura mortaity are sef based on actuanal advice in accordance with published
statishics and expensnce Thess assumptons translate Into an average Wfe expectancy in years for a

pensioner retiring at age 60

2015 2014

Years Years

Life expeclancy for male currently aged 60 29.2 288

Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 30.3 239

Life expectancy for male currently aged 40 308 308

Life expectancy for a female currently aged 40 <ryy 319
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The sensitvity of the defined bensfit obligation to changes in the principal assumplions is°

Change in assumption Impact on defined
henefit obligation

{$milllons
Discount rate 01% (0.8)
RPI inflation +0 1% (0.2}
Demographic change 1 year Increase In hfe axpectancy (1.8)

The above sensitivity analysis on the discount rate 1s based on a change In an assumption while holding afl
other assumptions constant The change in RPI inflation assumption impacts on the Consumer Pnces Index
(“CP1*) assumption, revaluation in deferment and pension increase assumptions When calcutating sensitivity
of the defined benefit obiigation to significant actuanal assumptions the same method (present valua of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected umit credit method at the end of the reporting penod)
has been applied as when calculating the pension hiability recognised within the statement of financial position
This is consistent with sensitwities calculated in previous periods

The Plan 1s exposed to a number of nsks, the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatility

The habihties are calculated using a discourit rate set with reference to corporate bond yields If assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The Ptan holds a significant proportion of growth assets (e g
equities, property, absolule return fund) which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term
whlle providing volatiity and risk in the short-term The allocation to growth assets 1s monitored such that it 1s
suitable with the Plan’s long term objactives

Changes in bond yrelds
A decrease In the corporate bond wields will increase the Plan's habilities, although this will be partially offset
by an increase in the value of the Plan's bond holdings

Inflation risk

The majority of the Plan's benefit obligations are linked to nflatton, and higher inflation will lead ta higher
habities (although, in most cases, caps on the levet of inflationary increases are in place to protect against
extreme inflation) The majonty of the assets are either unaffected by or loosely corelated with inflation,
meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit

Life expectancy
The majenty of the Plan's obligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the members, so increases in life
expectancy will result In an increase in the habillies

The Plan uses the buy-n contract and liabihty matching assets {which wicludes swaps and cash funds} as
matctung assets Tha remainder of the assets 1s usaed as growth assets Funding levels are momitored on a
quarterly basis and the next trienmal valuation 1s due to be completed as at 31 May 20417

There are no emplicyer contributions expected to be paid to the Plan for the year ending 31 May 2016 The
weighted avarage duration of the defined benefit obligation is approximately 16 years
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21 Net cash flow generated from operations

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures In $ millions Note 2015 2014
Operating profit 563 1252
Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 98 96
Capitahsed developed software written off 7 33 -
Geodwill impairment 6 600 -
Differences betwaan penision charge and cash contrnibutions 05 {0 3)
{Gain)loss on embedded denvatives 11 {7 9) 42
Unreahsed foreign exchange gains (22 3) 99
Mavements in working capital
(Increase)} / decrease In trade and other recevables 104 {57 9)
Decreasa in payables and provisions {22 0) {(257)
Increase / (decrease) in deferred Income {6 6) 639
Net cash flow generated from operations 291.7 310.0

22 Reconciliation of movements in net debt

The Group defines net debt as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and cash squivalenis and restricted

cash

Cash and

cash Restricted Bank

all figutes in $ millions equlvalents cash overdrafts  Bank loans Net debt
At 31 May 2013 263 24 (63) (1.605 9) (1,562 5)
Acquisitions - IND {41 5} - - (28) {44 3)
Cash flow 655 {10) 53 {209 6) (139 8)
Non-cash movements - - - (18 3) (18 3}
Diiferences on exchangs 05 - - (7.1) (6 6)
At 31 May 2014 508 1.4 - (1,843 7) {1,791.5)
Acguisitlons - CCS (24 9) - - - {24 9)
Cash flow 16.4 {0 5) - 131 290
Non-cash movements - - - (16 8) (16.8}
Differences on exchangg (2 0) - - 490 47 0
At 31 May 2015 40.3 09 - (4,798.4) (1,757.2

Restncted cash of $0 8m (2014 $1 4m)1s not availlable for the general use of the Group

Bank loans are inclusive of capitalised loan arrangemant fees of $5 3m (2014; $3 2m) which have been

reclassified to other recevables as descnbed In note 16
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23 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent habilites that are quantfiable arise from guarantees, letters of credit and bonds that have been
1ssued In support of tenders submitted to prospective custemers. These amount to $1 1m (2014 $0 7m)

A contingent liability exists in relation to the Group's defined benefit scheme (note 20) as a result of the
preposed equabsation of Guaranteed Minmum Pension (*GMP") The UK Government intends to implement
legislation which could result in an increase in the value of GMP for males This would increase the defined
benefit obhgation of the Plan At this stage it 1s not possible to quantify the impact of this change

The Company and Its subsidianes may be pariies to legal actions and claims ansing in the ordinary course of

business Whilst the outcoma of current outstanding actions and claims remains uncertain, it 1s expected that
they will be resolved without a matenal impact to the Group's financial positon

24 Commitments

Commitments of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases al 31 May 2015;

2015 2014
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
all figures in § mitlions bulldings  equipment buildings equipment
Rental payments due within cne yaar 266 0.3 30.8 02
Renta! payments due between one and five years 77.0 0.2 889 0.2
Rental paymants due afler five years 431 - 497 -
Tolal 146.7 0.5 1604 04

Total future sublease ingome under non-cancellable subleases 1s $4 2m dus within one year (2014 $4 6m),
$10 5m due betwesn one and five years (2014 $14 Om) and $4 9m due after 5 years (2014 §7 3m)

25. Related party transactions

Pargnt and subsidiaries
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been elminated on
consolidation and are nof disclesed in this note

Remuneration of key management personne!
The key management personnel of the Group compnse the Managers and certain other senior management
Thetr rermuneratian s set out below in aggregate

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures in $ millions 2015 2014
Short-term employment benefits 81 57
Post-employment benefits 0.1 02
Termination benefits - 15
82 T4

Tha $1.564 8m (2014 $1,391 6m) PECs balance and associated accrued interast 1s owed to Misys Newco
8 arl, the mmediate parent entity of the Group
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Other related parties
During the year, the Group acquired third party software from SumTotal Systems UK Limited, a company
previously owned, dunng the year, by Vista Equity Pariners for a consideration of $0 2m (2014 $0.4m)

The Group acquired services from Tibco Software Inc, a company owned by Vista Equity Partnars, for a
constderation of $0 3m (2014 Srul)

As at 31 May 2015, there were no outstanding balances due to SumTotal Systems UK Limited or Tibco
Software Inc

The Group utitised management consulting services from Vista Consulting Group LLC of $1 4m (2014 $2 4m)

The Group paid $0 6m of expenses on behalf of Vista Equity Pariners {2014 $0 8m) Cumulative debt of
$1 2m was seillad via a repayment of accrued interast on Senes E PECs as is prescribed under the PEC
agreament There is a remalning receivable balance of $0 2m (2014. $0 8m) from Vista Equity Partners at 31
May 2015 which was not seitled

During the year, $0 2m was charged to Aptean Corporation, a company owned by Vista Equity Partners, in
respect of payroll recharges As at 31 May 2015, $0 1m was outstanding from Aptean Corporation

26 Financial Instruments: risk management

The Group operates a centralised treasury function which i1s responsible for managing the liquidity, interest
rate and foreign exchange risks associated with the Group's activities under policies approved by the Board
As part of iis strategy for the management of these nsks, the Group usas denivative financial instruments In
accordance with the Group's treasury policy, derivattve nstruments are not entered into for speculative
purposes Treasury policy 18 reviewed and approved by the Board and specifies the parameters within which
treasury operations must be conducted, including authonsed counterparties, instrument types, transaction
limits and principles governing the management of hquidity, interest rale and foreign exchange nisks

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than denvatives, are cash, short term deposits, bank loans,
PECs, frade and other receivables and trade and other payables The man purpose of thesa financial
instruments 1s to raise finance for the Group's operations

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from various currency
expcsures Foreign exchange nsk arses from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and habilities
and net nvestments n forelgn operations The Group reviews the non-US Dollar nat cash flow sxposure of the
Group and hedges forecast exposures which exceed the limit specified by management using external forward
confracts

The Group's net exposure to foreign currency sk s illustrated by the sensitivity analysis in note 29

Interest rate nsk

Thé Group Is exposed to cash flow Interest rate nsk on floating rate loans, overdrafls and cash held on
deposit The Group's borrowings are a mix of floating and fixed rates with variable Interest rates set for periods
of three months or less The Group's vanable rate term Joan debi references LIBOR, with a specified floor of
1% Based on various scenanos, the Group manages Its cash flow interest rate nisk using interest rate hedging
instruments such as caps or swaps. As at 31 May 2015 the Group held no interest rate hedging instruments
(2014 none)

The Group's net exposure lo interest rate risk i1s tlustrated by the sensitivity analysls In note 29
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Credit nsk

Cradit nisk anses from cash and cash eguivalents, darivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions but pnmarily from outstanding trade receivables and committed transactions, The Group
has policies 1n place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropnate credit history.

Denvative and cash transachons are limited to high-quality financial institutions The Group has policies that
iimit the amount of credit exposure fo any financial institution For customer contracts, the Group and each
reporling subsidiary have specified nisk control and authonsation procedures 1n place to assess the credi
quality of a customer Where there is no independent nsk rating for a customer, such an assessment takes into
account financial position, past expenence and other factors

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nisk, with exposures spread over a large number of
customers and counterpariies

Lquidity risk

Tha Group manages its cash and borrowing requirements centrally to minimise net interest expense within risk
parameters set by the Board, whilst ensuring that the Group has sufficient iquid resources to meet the
operating needs of the business The long term forecast cash and borrowings profile of the Group is mopitored
to ensure that adequata headroom remains under current and projected borrowing faciities

The table below shows the maturty analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the
Group's non-defivative financial liabilities

Less than 1to 2 2to 5 Over 5 2015
all figures [n § milifons 1 year years yoars years Tatal
Borrawings 150 8 1802 2,0528 - 2,353.6
Trade and other payables 155 9 - - - 155.9
Total cash flows - 2015 306.7 1502  2,052.6 -  2,508.5

Less than 102 2105 Qver s 2014
2l figures in § millions 1 vyear Years years years Tolal
Borrowings 1679 1820 2,273.2 - 26131
Trade and other payables 1856 22 6.2 14 195 4
Other llabikities 106 - 0.2 02 110
Total cash flows - 2014 354.1 1842 22796 16 28185

The Group has also 19sued PECs with a maturity of 49 years as outined in Note 17 At the reporting date, the
PECs have 46 years cutstanding to mafunty The PECs hava not been taken Into account in the abova
matunly analysis of undiscounted contractual eash flows The total impact for the PECs In 46 years on an
undiscounted contractual cash flow basis 18 $377,251 9m following the $1 2m repayment of PEC wterest
dunng the year {2014 $377,663 im)

The table below analyses the Group's outflow and inflow from derivative financial instruments into relevant

maturity grouptngs based on the remaning contractiral matunty penod at the reporting date The amounts
disclosed in the tabla are the contractual undiscounted gross cash flows.
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Less than 1to 2 2to5 Overb 2015
ali figurag in § miions 1 year years years years Total
Denvative financial mstruments (gross settled)

- inflows 267 4 1064 19 22 37689

- outflows (253 0) {101.6) {0.5) 02) (355.3)

Net cash flows - 2015 14 4 3.8 1.4 2.0 21.6
Less than 102 2to5 QOver5 2014

all igures in § mMions 1 year years years Yeoars Total

Denvative financial instruments {gross

settled)

- Inflows 3701 816 c7 - 452 4

- outfiows (372 7) (82.6) {27) - (453 0)

Net cash flows - 2014 (2.6) (1.0} {2 0} - (56)

Netting arrangements of denvative financial mstruments

The gross fair value of derivalive financial instruments as presented in the Group conschdated statement of
financial position, logether with the Group's rights to offset associated with recogrised financial assels and
recognised financial habilities subject {o enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements 1s
summarised as follows:

May May
2015 2014
Consolidated statement of financial Consolidated statement of financial
positfon position
Gross Amount Net Gross Amount Net
il fgures In § milllong amount  presepted amount amount _ presented amount
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 208 208 160 35 36 1.7
Financial liabilities
Denvative financial Insiruments {4 0) {4.0) (0 1) 5.9) 59) {4.0Y
16 8 16.8 16 8 2 3) 23) (23)

Net amounts show the effect If alt amounts were netted off for each Indlvidual counter parly

Capital risk

The capital structure of the Group consists of nel debt, PECs (note 17} and equity aftnbutable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and raetained earnings as shown in the consoldated
statement of changes in equity and note 14. The Group manages s capttal with the objective that all entitles
within the Group continue as a going concern white mantaining an efficient structure to mimmise the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dwidends pad to
shareholdars, return capital to sharsholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group 18 subject to certan financial covenants under i1s toan facilites These specfy a maximum ratio of
net debt to operating profit, before depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items, deducting capitalised
research and development costs This cavenant has not been breached during the year

27 Financral instruments: categories

Fair vaiue measurement hierarchy

Fair valuse measurements of financal instruments {where relevant) ars cassified using the foliowing fair value
hierarchy which reflacts the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements
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= Cuoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiithes (Lavel 1),
= Input other than quoted pnces included within Leve! 1 thal are cbservable for the asset or lability, either
dirgctly (1 e as pnces) of indirectly (.8 denvad from pnces) (Level 2), and

= Inputs for the asset ar liability that are not based on observable market dala (uncbservabla inputs) (Level
3).

Fair value Non-

Far value  through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
al} figuras tn § millions hisrarchy* PE&L receivables cost instrument® Current current
At 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 25 - - - - 25
Denvatwe financal
mstruments Level 2 26.7 - - - 185 82
Trade and other racawvables - 3458 - 217 3343 33.2
Resincted cash - 09 -~ . - g8 -
Cash and cash squivalents - 40 3 - - 403 -

202 as7.0 - 2197 3940 43.9
Financial liabilities
Denvative financial
nstruments Laval 2 5N - - - (40 (11)
Borrowings and PECs - - (3,368 5) - - (3.368.5)
Trade and other payables - - {167 9) {23.5) {182.6) {8.8)
{5.1) - (3,538.4) {23 5) (186 8) (3,378.4)
Fair value Non-

Fair value through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
all figures in § miions hierarchy! P&L receivables cost instrument! Current  current
At 31 May 2014
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 28 - - - - 28
Denvative financial
mnstruments Level 2 49 - ~ - 35 14
Trade and other recelvables - 3729 - 262 3758 233
Reslricted cash - 14 - - 14 -
Cash and cash eqguivalents - 508 - - 50 8 -

77 4251 - 202 4315 275
Financial liabilties
Denvative financial
instruments Level 2 {10 5) - - - (62) (43)
Borrowings - - {3,238 5} - - (3,238 5)
Trade and other payables - - (206 3 (19.5) (213 8) {(12.0)
{10 5) - (3.444.8 (19 6) (220.0) {3,254 8)

"Fair value ierarchy shows tha foir value measurement categories as descnbod below

?Assels that do not qualify as 5 financlal Instrument melude prepaymants of $21 7Tm {2014 $26 2m) Liabilties that do not quatify as
financial Instruments are tax and ather social security payments of 23 5m (2014 $18 5m)

a) Financial instruments in level 1

The far velua of finencial instruments traded 1n achive markets 1S based on quoted matket pnces at the close of
business on the reporling date A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
availlable from an exchange, dealer, broker, Industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transachons on an arm's length basis The quotad
market prnce used for financial assets held by the Group 1s the current bid pnce These mnstruments are
included n level 1 and compnse investments 1n quoted marketable securities
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b} Financial instruments in level 2

The farr value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
denvatives) 1s determined by using valuaton techmques The valuation techmiques maximise the use of
observable market data where il 1s available and rely as little as possible on entity spacific estimates If all
significant inputs required to falr value an instrument are observable, the instrument i1s included in level 2

Forward exchange rates valuation technque was used to value financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents primarily compnse cash deposite and investments Cash which bears interest at
nominal rates comprises $16 1m (2014 $26.3m) in US Dollar, $3.0m (2014 $1 6ém) denominated in Pound
Sterling, $30m (2014 %8 2m) in Eurc and $18 2m (2014 %14 7m) in other currencies Resiricted cash
comprises $0 9m (2014 $0 8m) denominated in US Dellar and $nil {2014 $0 6m) in other currencies

Forward foreign exchange contracls
The fair value of forelgn exchange derwatives was a net asset of $16 8m (2014 liabiliy of $2 3m)

28. Financial Instruments: falr values

The far values of each category of the Group's financial instruments are approximate to their carrying values
in the Group's statement of financial posititon as the impact of discounting 1s not significant

29. Financial instruments: sensitivity analysis

Forsign currency sensiivily analysis

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to Pound Sterling, the Euro and Indian Rupee The table
below illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity for every 10% increase
and decrease, in relation to the US Dollar, m the Euro, Pound Sterling and Indian Rupee exchange rates at the
reporting date, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged. The sensitinty rate of 10% represents the
Managers’ assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable future.

QOutstanding forward contracts used to hedge the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the Group as
described in note 28 are included 1n this analysis It 1s anticipated that on maturity of the hedges an underlying
future anticipated cash flow exposure will crystalise and offset any gan or loss

Positive figures represent an increase In operatng profit

Consolidated income statement

all figures in $ milions 2015 2014
US Decilar strengthens by 10%

Euro {13 0) (12 6)
Pound Sterling (2.0) (53)
Indhan Rupee 48 41

US Dollar weakens by 10%

Euro 130 163
Pound Steriing 20 60

Indian Rupes {4.8) {5.0)

Year average exchange rates applied in the abova analysis are Euro 1 22, Pound Sterling 1 59 and Indian
Rupee 002 (2014 Euro 1 37, Pound Sterhng 1 87 and Indian Rupea 0 02)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group's variable rate debt references LIBOR with a flaor of 1% The Group 1s exposed to increases in
interest rates beyond thig floor The table below llustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported
profit to @ 0 5% increase in intarest rates bayend the 1%, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged The
sensitivity of 0 5% represents the Managers’ assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable
future .

Consolldated income statement
all igures Iin § millions 2015 2014
Interest rate increase of 0 5% 87} (9 6)
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 67 96

30. Principal subsidiary undertakings

The Company Is the beneficial owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voting nghts over all the equity
share capital, through subsidiary underiakings, of the following principal operating subsidiary undertakings

These develop and license application software producis to customers in well-defined vertical markels
logether with undertaking transaction processing, professional sennces and e-commerce actinties

Company name Country of Incorporation Markets served
and operatlon

Msys International Banking Systems GmbH  Germany All of these subsidiaries offer Global products
Misys Internatronal Bankung Systems Inc UsA and searvices in the following areas
. Retall and international branch banking
Misys intermnational Banking Systems Limited England and Wales
. Transaction banking
Misys International Banking Systems Pty Austraha
Limited
. Treasury and capital markets
Misys International Banking Systems Limited Hong Kong
. Enterprisa-wide market and credit risk
Misys Intemational Financlal Systems Pte Singapore management
Limited
- Software integrahon technoiogy
Misys France SAS France
Misys Europe SA { uxembourg
Misys Inlernational Financial Systems China
Technology (Beljing) Limited Portfolio and risk management services in
the following areas
Misys Ireland Limited Republic of ireland - Investment banks
. Treasury and capitat markets
Misys Italy S ri ltaly . Fund management
. Penslon funds
Misys Global Limited England and Wales

31 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking 15 Misys Newco Sa rl This company files consolidated financial
statements in Luxembourg

The party which controls the Company Is Vista Equity Partners based in USA,
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32, Parent undertaking guarantee

Certain UK and German subsidiaries in the Group hava elected to make use of the audit exemption, for non-
dormant subsidiaries, under sechion 479A of the UK Companles Act and by virtue of section 264(3) HGB of tha
German Commarcial Code as relevant. The German subsidiary listed below has also electad to make use of
the exempfion to pubilsh its financial statementa in the electronic federal gazette In order to fulfil the
conditions set out in the regulations, the Company has given a staiutory guarantes of all outstanding Habilites
to which the subsldiaries ara subject at the end of the financial year to 31 May 2015 The companies which
have made use of the audit exemption as follows

Company name Company Numbar Registered cffice

Kapiti Limited 1841697 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 68L, UK
MiBS Holdings Limited 874912 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Africa Limited 3079792 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Global Limited 7830889 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Group Holdings Limited 3379662 One Kingdom Strest, Londan, W2 6BL, UK
Misys International Banking

Systems (CIS) Limited 3259295 One Kingdom Strest, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Holdings Limited 1752099 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Services Limited 1541076 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Summit Asia Limited 2698761 Onre Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
MIBS Germany GmbH HRB36797 Heddernchstrasse 36, 60584 Frankfurt, Garmany

33. Evants after the reporting date

As at the date of approval of the consclidated financial statements no significant ar materlal events affecting
the Group have been identified
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